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SCOR Reinsurance Company (Asia) Limited

Directors’ Report

The directors submit herewith their report and the audited financial statements of SCOR Reinsurance
Company (Asia) Limited (the "Company”) for the year ended 31 December 2024,

Principal activity

The Company’s principal activity has not changed during the year and consists of long term and general
reinsurance business.

Recommended dividend
The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

Directors

The directors who held office during the year or during the period from the end of the year to the date of this
report were:

George Leung Woon Wing
Pooi Choon Beng

Ho Yiu Tung

Mukul Kishore

Bernard Charnwut Chan (Independent non-executive director)
Chu Wing Yiu (Independent non-executive director)

In accordance with article 85 of the Company’s Articles of Association, all directors retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

Controllers

The controllers of the Company (as defined in Section 9 of the Insurance Ordinance) during the year and up
to the date of this report were:

SCOR SE
Thierry Dominigue Leger
George Leung Woon Wing

Arrangements for acquisition of shares or debentures
The following directors and a controller, who held office at the end of the financial year, had an interest in
shares of SCOR SE, the Company’s ultimate holding company, as stated below:

Shareholdings registered in the name of
director or controller*

George Leung Woon Wing 29,772
Pooi Choon Beng 32,901
Ho Yiu Tung 17,589
Mukul Kishore 12,604
Thierry Dominique Leger 21,438

* Par value of ordinary shares of Euro7.8769723 each
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SCOR Reinsurance Company (Asia) Limited

Directors’ Report

Arrangements for acquisition of shares or debentures (Continued)

Pursuant to the share option schemes of the Company’s ultimate holding company, certain directors and a
controller of the Company have been granted share options o purchase ordinary shares of SCOR SE. The
following share options were outstanding during the year.

Number of share options

At Granted Exercised Expired At Exercise price

Name of 1 January during the during the during the 31 December Exercise period of of share
director/controller 2024 year year year 2024 share options options#
Euro

Pooi Choon Beng 10,485 - - - 10,485 6 November 2024 to 14,74 to 28.33

9 November 2033

Ho Yiu Tung 10,000 - - - 10,000 16 March 2027 to 22.83
16 March 2033

Mukul Kishore 14,800 - - - 14,800 16 March 2027 to 22.83 {0 28,33
9 November 2033

Thierry Dominique Leger 26 May 2027 to 24.35 10 30.17
53,334 80,000 - - 133,334 30 April 2034

88,619 80,000 - - 168,619

# The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in
the ultimate holding company’s share capital.

Further details of the share option schemes of the Company’s ultimate holding company are set out in note
15 to the financial statements.

Other than as disclosed above, the directors and a controller were granted ordinary shares of the ultimate
holding company under the general share award plan implemented by the ultimate holding company. The
shareholdings under the plan at the end of the financial year were as follows:

Shareholdings registered in the name
of director or controller*

George Leung Woon Wing 1,800
Pooi Choon Beng 8,200
Ho Yiu Tung 21,600
Mukul Kishore 16,700
Thierry Dominique Leger 308,727

* Par value of ordinary shares of Euro7.8769723 each

Further details of the general share award plan of the Company’s ultimate holding company are set out in note
15 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company, its holding company or fellow
subsidiary undertaking a party to any arrangements to enable directors or controllers of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other company.
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SCOR Reinsurance Company (Asia) Limited

Directors’ Report

Material interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts

After consideration, the directors are of the opinion that no transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance in relation to the Company’s business to which the Company’s holding company or fellow subsidiary
undertaking was a party and in which a director or controller of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Certain directors of the Company also hold key management positions in its holding company, or certain of its
fellow subsidiaries, which may have transactions with the Company as disclosed in note 18 to the financial
statements.

Management contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of any
business of the Company were entered into or existed during the year.

Permitted indemnity provisions

No permitted indemnity provision was in force during the year, or is in force at the date of this report, for the benefit
of a then director or a director of the Company (whether made by the Company or otherwise) or a then director or
a director of its holding company or fellow subsidiary (if made by the Company).

Equity-linked agreements
No equity-linked agreements into which the Company entered subsisted at any time during the year.

Insurance operation
During the year, the Company has carried on solely reinsurance business.

Auditor
Forvis Mazars CPA Limited (formerly known as Mazars CPA Limited), Certified Public Accountants, retire and

a resolution for its reappointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by

(ot

George Leung Woon Wing
Director
Hong Kong, 22 April 2025
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42nd Floor, Central Plaza

To the member of 18 Harbour Road

SCOR Reinsurance Company (Asia) Limited ST ;ﬁgﬁga'wgﬁa" ZongaKong
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability) A FEEIE8RIRE 212
Tel &54:+852 2909 5555

Fax {8E : +852 2810 0032
forvismazars.com/hk

Independent Auditor’s Report

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of SCOR Reinsurance Company (Asia) Limited (the “Company”)
set out on pages 7 to 80, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and
the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
as at 31 December 2024, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants (the “HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Companies
Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") as issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Audifor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the directors’ report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Forvis Mazars CPA Limited Page 4 Of 80
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the member of

SCOR Reinsurance Company (Asia) Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the HKICPA and the
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting uniess the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the member of

SCOR Reinsurance Company (Asia) Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

» Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the

audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit,

Forvis Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 22 April 2025

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is:
Chan Hiu Fun
Practising Certificate number. P05709

Page 6 of 80



SCOR Reinsurance Company (Asia) Limited

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
Year ended 31 December 2024

Notes

Insurance revenue 2,12
Insurance service expenses 12
Net expenses from reinsurance contracts held 12

Insurance service result

Investment income, net 2
Net finance expenses from insurance contracts issued 12
Net finance (expenses) income from reinsurance contracts held 12
Foreign exchange gain (loss), net

Investment income and expenses, net
Other operating income

Other non-attributable operating expenses
Investment management expenses

w w N

Total other operating expenses, net
Operating result

Other expenses
Financing expenses
Foreign exchange loss, net

Profit (Loss) before tax
Income tax credit 4
Profit (Loss) for the year

Other comprehensive (loss) income:
ltems that are reclassified or may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss
Investments at fair value through other comprehensive income;
Changes in fair value
Reclassification adjustment for fair value (gain) loss on disposal
included in profit or loss
Net finance (expenses) income from insurance contracts issued
— change in discount rates and other financial assumptions 12
Net finance income (expenses) from reinsurance contracts held
— change in discount rates and other financial assumptions 12
Taxes recorded directly in equity

Other comprehensive (loss) income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive (loss) income for the year

2024 2023
Us$ Us$
102,968,720 93,472,300
(104,913,259) (70,337,496)
(894,278) (37,828,105)
(2,838,817) (14,693,301)
17,305,533 16,037,998
(1,914,320) (1,726,975)
(1,286,771) 2,771,004
793,953 (1,683,127)
14,898,395 15,398,900
5,236,745 5,307,022
(10,907,848) (10,501,071)
(296,565) (375,868)
(5,967,668) (5,569,917)
6,091,910 (4,864,318)
(66,842) (151,261)
(162,421) (215,562)
(1,889,995) (2,518,331)
3,972,652 (7,749,472)
908,045 1,538,254
4,880,697 (6,211,218)
(292,704) 2,886,054
(130,079) 53,428
(13,164,963) 5,127,540
7,547,929 (778,111)
463,405 (358,828)
(5,576,412) 6,930,083
(695,715) 718,865
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SCOR Reinsurance Company (Asia) Limited

Statement of Financial Position
31 December 2024

Notes
Assets
Property, plant and equipment 6(a)
Right-of-use assets 6(b)
Investments at fair value through other comprehensive income 7
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 8
Deposits and other receivables 9
Derivative financial instruments 10
Loan to a fellow subsidiary 11
Due from ultimate holding company 11
Due from fellow subsidiaries 11
Insurance contracts issued 12
Reinsurance contracts held 12
Deferred tax assets 13
income tax receivable
Cash and bank balances
Total Assets
Liabilities
Lease liabilities 6(b)
Derivative financial instruments 10
Due to ultimate holding company 11
Due to fellow subsidiaries 11
Insurance contracts issued 12
Reinsurance contracts held 12
Deferred tax liabilities 13

Other payables and accrued liabilities
Total Liabilities

Net Assets

2024 2023

uss Us$

95,096 135,156
730,024 1,403,893
123,993,912 140,116,444
108,315,328 103,844,325
3,127,641 3,916,469
145,788 455,596
31,000,000 31,000,000
- 811,676

3,000,181 821,246

- 3,621,630
45,226,430 59,806,206
12,930,402 1,426,000
10,902 428,020
14,068,664 8,114,539
342,644,368 355,801,200
757,462 1,424,765
756,450 1,715,659
1,142,426 2,138,669
5,222,487 5,045,494
127,643,331 128,349,792
11,232,956 29,463,951
12,395,881 2,262,929
2,536,701 3,692,431
161,687,694 174,093,590

180,956,674

181,707,610
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SCOR Reinsurance Company (Asia) Limited

Statement of Financial Position
31 December 2024

Notes 2024 2023
us$ Us$

Capital and reserves
Share capital 14 27,556,492 27,556,492
Reserves 153,400,182 154,151,118
Total Equity 180,956,674 181,707,610

These financial statements on pages 7 to 80 were approved and authonised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 22 April 2025 and signed on its behalf by

....................... Y Codune/

POOi Choon eng Georée' 'Le‘:’ng Woon Wing ................

Director Director
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SCOR Reinsurance Company (Asia) Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity
Year ended 31 December 2024

Capital
contribution
from
Issued ultimate Insurance
share holding Revaluation finance Retained
capital company* reserve* reserve® profits* Total
Us$ Us$g Uss Us$ Uss$ Uss$
At 1 January 2023 27,556,492 443,898 (7,066,945)  (17,628,130) 177,511,446 180,916,761
Loss for the year - - - - (6,211,218) (6,211,218)

Other comprehensive income:

Changes in fair value of

investments at FVOCI - - 2,886,054 - - 2,886,054
Reclassification adjustment for

fair value loss on disposal of

investments at FVOCI

included in profit or loss - - 53,428 - - 53,428
Net finance income from

insurance contracts issued

and reinsurance contracts

held - change in discount

rates and other financial

assumptions, net of taxes - - - 3,990,601 - 3,990,601
Other comprehensive income for

the year - - 2,939,482 3,990,601 - 6,930,083
Total comprehensive income for

the year - - 2,939,482 3,990,601 (6,211,218) 718,865

Transactions with owners:
Contributions and distributions
Equity-settled share option and

share awards arrangements - 194,081 - - (122,097) 71,984
Total transactions with owners - 194,081 - - (122,097) 71,984
At 31 December 2023 and

1 January 2024 27,556,492 637,979 (4,127,463)  (13,637,529) 171,178,131 181,707,610
Profit for the year - - - - 4,880,697 4,880,697

Other comprehensive loss:

Changes in fair value of

investments at FVOCI - - (292,704) - - (292,704)
Reclassification adjustment for

fair value gain on disposal of

investments at FVOCI

included in profit or loss - - (130,079) - - (130,079)
Net finance expenses from

insurance contracts issued

and reinsurance contracts

held - change in discount

rates and other financial

assumptions, net of taxes - - - (5,153,629) - (5,163,629)
Other comprehensive loss for the

year - - (422,783) (5,153,629) - (5,576,412)
Total comprehensive loss for the

year - - (422,783) (5,153,629) 4,880,697 (695,715)

Transactions with owners:
Contributions and distributions
Equity-settled share option and

share awards arrangements - (53,974) - - (1,247) (55,221)
Total transactions with owners - (53,974) - - (1,247) (55,221)
At 31 December 2024 27,556,492 584,005 (4,550,246) (18,691,158) 176,057,581 180,956,674

* These reserve accounts comprise the reserves of US$153,400,182 (2023: US$154,151,118) in the statement of financial position.
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SCOR Reinsurance Company (Asia) Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
Notes Uss Us$

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash used in operations 16 (22,906,345) (39,022,172)
Profits tax refunded 417,118 643,667
Net cash flows used in operating activities (22,489,227) (38,378,505)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and dividend received 7,218,306 5,425,039
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (20,057) (25,700)
Net sales of investments 21,951,437 31,045,178
Net cash flows from investing activities 29,149,686 36,444,517
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of lease liabilities and interests 17 (706,334) (741,994)
Net cash flows used in financing activities (706,334) (741,994)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash

equivalents 5,954,125 (2,675,982)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 8,114,539 10,790,521
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year,

represented by cash and bank balances 14,068,664 8,114,539

Major non-cash transaction
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company acquired assets by means of lease arrangements in
respect of assets with a total capital value at the inception of the leases of US$2,021,605.
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SCOR Reinsurance Company (Asia) Limited

Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2024

CORPORATE INFORMATION

SCOR Reinsurance Company (Asia) Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated in
Hong Kong. The registered office of the Company is located at Suites 803-10, 8" Floor, CITIC Tower, 1 Tim
Mei Avenue, Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company did not change during the year and consists of long term and general
reinsurance business.

The Company is a subsidiary of SCOR SE, an European company incorporated and listed in France. In the
opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding company of the Company is SCOR SE.

1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards,
which collective term includes all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (‘HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared on a basis consistent with the accounting policies
adopted in the 2023 financial statements. The adoption of the new / revised HKFRS Accounting
Standards that are relevant to the Company and effective from the current year had no significant
effects on the results and financial position of the Company for the current and prior years.

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted by the Company is set out below.

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these financial statements is historical cost, except
for investments at fair value through other comprehensive income, investments at fair value through
profit or loss and derivative financial instruments, which are measured at fair value as explained in the

principal accounting policies set out below. The financial statements are presented in US dollars which
is also the Company’s functional currency.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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SCOR Reinsurance Company (Asia) Limited

Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2024

1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:;

Leasehold improvements 20% or over the lease term, whichever is shorter
Data processing equipment 25%

Furniture, fixtures and other equipment 10-20%

Motor vehicles 16.7%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that ifem is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Revenue recognition other than insurance revenue

interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by applying the
rate that discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the Company'’s right to receive payment has been established.

Management fee income is recognised over time when management services are rendered. The
Company applies the input method (i.e. based on the proportion of the actual inputs deployed to date
as compared to the estimated total inputs) to measure the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the performance obligation because there is a direct relationship between the Company’s inputs and
the transfer of services to the customers and reliable information is available to the Company to apply
the method. The principal input applied in the input method is costs incurred.

Insurance contracts

An insurance contract is a contract under which an insurer accepts significant insurance risk from a
policyholder by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future event (i.e. the
insured event) adversely affects the policyholder; and a reinsurance contract is an insurance contract
issued by a reinsurer to compensate another entity for claims arising from one or more insurance contracts
issued by that other entity (underlying contracts).

Insurance risk is defined as a risk, other than financial risk, transferred from the holder of a contract to the
issuer. It is significant when there is at least one scenario that has commercial substance in which the
insurer is obliged to pay significant additional benefits on a present value basis.
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SCOR Reinsurance Company (Asia) Limited

Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2024

1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Insurance contracts (Continued)
Moreover, a reinsurance contract is deemed to transfer insurance risk when the risk position of the
reinsurer follows the risk position of the ceding company related to the ceded insurance contracts.

The Company issues reinsurance contracts on both Life and Health (“L&H") business and Property and
Casualty (“P&C") business by assuming the insurance risks transferred from other entities which
underwrite insurance contracts. The Company does not issue any contract with direct participation
features.

Combining a set or series of contracts and separation of components from insurance contracts

If a set or series of contracts with the same or related counterparty achieves or is designed to achieve an
overall commercial effect, the set or series of contracts is treated as a whole. Contracts that have a legal
form of insurance but do not transfer significant insurance risk and expose the Company to financial risk
are classified in investment and financial contract liabilities under HKFRS 9.

An insurance contract may contain one or more distinct components that would be within the scope of
another standard if they were separate contracts. The Company identifies and separates distinct
components and accounts for these under the relevant HKFRS Accounting Standards, as follows:

a) applying HKFRS 9 to determine whether there is an embedded derivative to be separated and, if
there is, how to account for that derivative; and

b) separating from a host insurance contract an investment component if, and only if, that investment
component is distinct and applies HKFRS 9 to account for the separated distinct investment
component.

Furthermore, the Company separates from the host insurance contract any promise to transfer distinct
goods or non-insurance services to a policyholder, applying HKFRS 15.

All remaining components of the host insurance contract are accounted for under HKFRS 17.

Non-distinct investment component (‘NDIC")

NDIC is an amount that is payable to the cedant under all circumstances. NDIC are not separated from
the measurement of the liabilities for insurance contracts but are excluded from insurance revenue and
insurance service expenses in profit or loss. Experience adjustments impacting the prospective
quantification of NDIC are recognised against the contractual service margin.

The directors of the Company considered that profit commissions which are to be repaid to the cedant in
all circumstances meet the definition of NDIC.
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SCOR Reinsurance Company (Asia) Limited

Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2024

1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Insurance contracts (Continued)

Level of aggregation

HKFRS 17 requires entities to define the level of aggregation in order to measure insurance contracts and
their related profitability. In assessing the level of aggregation, the following are considered:

a) Portfolio
A portfolio comprises contracts that are subject to similar risks and managed together. In practice this

refers to the differentiation of the lines of business and geographical regions where the Company
operates.

b) Profitability buckets
Portfolios of reinsurance contracts issued are divided into the below three groups:
(i) contracts that are onerous at initial recognition;
(i) contracts that have no significant possibility of becoming onerous subsequently; and
(iiiy group of remaining contracts in the portfolio.

¢} Annual cohorts
The Company considers this to be driven by the underwriting year of the contract.

Initial recognition
The Company recognises groups of reinsurance contracts that it issues from the earliest of the following:

a) the beginning of the coverage period of a group of contracts;
b) the date when the first payment from a cedant in the group is due; or
¢) for a group of onerous contracts, when the group becomes onerous.

For profitable contracts, the recognition date of reinsurance contracts is the earliest of the initial coverage
date or the date when premium is first due. Whenever a contract is determined to be onerous, it is
recognised immediately.

Contract boundary

The Company includes in the measurement of a group of insurance contracts all the future cash flows
within the boundary of each contract in the group. Cash flows are within the boundary of an insurance
contract if they arise from substantive rights and obligations that exist during the reporting period in which
the Company can compel the cedant to pay the premiums or in which the Company has a substantive
obligation to provide the cedant with services. A substantive obligation to provide insurance contract
services ends when:

a) the Company has the practical ability to reassess the risks of the particular cedent and can set a price
or level of benefits that fully reflects those reassessed risks; or

b) the Company has the practical ability to reassess the risks of the portfolio that contains the contract
and can set a price or level of benefits that fully reflects the risks of that portfolio, and the pricing of
the premiums for coverage up to the reassessment date does not take into account risks that relate
to periods after the reassessment date.

Aliability or asset relating to expected premiums or expected claims outside the boundary of the insurance
contract is not recognised.

Page 15 of 80



SCOR Reinsurance Company (Asia) Limited

Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2024

1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Insurance contracts (Continued)

Contract boundary (Continued)

The directors of the Company considered that in the normal course of business, the repricing mechanisms
do not give the Company the practical ability to set a price that fully reflects the risk at the repricing date;
hence do not often meet the criteria allowing them to be considered as end of the contract boundary.

The contract boundaries of L&H reinsurance contracts are determined by reference to the termination
clauses. For long-term treaties open to new policies, in-force business is projected until natural expiry of
the treaty allowing for expected policyholder behaviour. The contract boundary is reassessed at each
reporting date and when the termination clause is not exercised, the contract boundary is extended and
additional business not previously projected in the cash flows are added (subject to no material change
to the treaty terms).

The contract boundaries of P&C reinsurance contracts are determined based on the repricing
mechanisms and termination dates. The contract boundary is reassessed at each reporting date.

The Company considered premium receivables from an intermediary as future cash flows within the
boundary of the insurance contracts.

Insurance acquisition cash flows

In some cases, the Company pays or receives amounts to sell, underwrite or start new insurance contracts
which are referred to as “insurance acquisition cash flows”. The Company recognises an asset for
acquisition cash flows that occurred during the period and are attributable to contracts not yet recognised.

H

Prior to the initial recognition of the contract, the acquisition cash flow asset is presented as an asset
within the insurance portfolio. Such an asset is recognised for each group of contracts to which the
insurance acquisition cash flows are allocated. At the end of each reporting period, the portion of the
premium that relates to recovering those acquisition cash flows is recognised in a systematic way. It is
derecognised when the insurance acquisition cash flows are included in the measurement of the related
groups of contracts.

Impairment review for acquisition cash flows assets is carried out annually. If facts and circumstances
indicate that the asset may be impaired, and the carrying amount of the asset is higher than net cash
inflow for the related group of insurance contracts, impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. If the
impairment conditions no longer exist or have improved, a reversal of impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Initial measurement

HKFRS 17 develops a discounted measurement approach as the General Measurement Model (“GMM”)
for all insurance and reinsurance contracts as well as an option for a simplified measurement model as
the Premium Allocation Approach (‘PAA”) for short-term contracts and a model solely dedicated to
contracts with direct participation features. The Company has chosen to use the GMM for measurement
of the Company’s entire portfolio of insurance contracts and PAA is not applied.
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1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Insurance contracts (Continued)

Initial measurement (Continued)

Under the GMM, on initial recognition, the Company measures a group of insurance contracts as the total
of:

a) the fulfilment cash flows, which comprises:

- estimates of future cash flows associated with groups of contracts;

- an adjustment to reflect the time value of money and the financial risks related to the future cash
flows, fo the extent that the financial risks are not included in the estimates of the future cash
flows; and

- arisk adjustment for non-financial risk; and

b) the contractual service margin (“CSM") representing the unearned profit that the Company will
recognise as it provides services in the future.

The future cash flows and risk adjustment for non-financial risks are remeasured and updated based on
latest market information at the end of each reporting period to reflect current conditions.

Initial measurement of fulfilment cash flows
The estimates of future cash flows include the expected value of the full range of possible outcomes within

the contract boundary, which include premiums, claims, commissions, funds held by ceding companies
and all other attributable cash flows.

Cash flows that may arise from future new business on existing treaties, other than business expected
within the notice period, non-attributable expenses, cash flows arising from components separated from
the insurance contracts are not included in the contract boundary.

Insurance contracts are measured on a cash basis and therefore include all receivables, payables and
expenses modelled in the estimates of future cash flows, until they are actually paid.

The risk adjustment for non-financial risk represents the compensation that the Company requires for
bearing the uncertainty about the amount and timing of the cash flows that arises from non-financial risk.
The risks covered by the risk adjustment for non-financial risk are insurance risks (e.g. long-term and
shock claims risk) and other non-financial risks such as lapse and expense risks.

The methodology of determination of risk adjustment for non-financial risk and discount rates are further
discussed in section “critical accounting estimates and judgements” and note 12(i) to the financial
statements.

Initial measurement of CSM

On initial recognition of a group of contracts, if the sum of the fulfilment cash flows, any cash flows arising
at that date and any derecognised assets for insurance acquisition cash flows is a net inflow, then the
group is not onerous, In this case, the CSM is measured as the equal and opposite amount of the net
inflow, which results in no income or expenses arising on initial recognition.

If the sum is a net outflow, then the group of contracts is deemed onerous, and a day-one loss is
immediately recognised in profit or loss and amortised as a loss component in subsequent measurement.
A loss component is created to depict the amount of net cash outflows, which determines the amounts
that are subsequently presented in profit or loss as reversals of losses on onerous groups and are
excluded from insurance revenue. The loss component is monitored separately either untif the contract is
derecognised or until the group is profitable.
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1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Insurance contracts (Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The carrying amount of a group of insurance contracts at the end of each reporting period is the sum of
the liability for remaining coverage (“LRC") and the liability for incurred claims (“LIC").

The LRC is the Company'’s obligation for insurance contracts written where insured events have not yet
occurred. This is a measure, at a given valuation date, of future service to be provided (insurance risk
coverage). The LRC comprises (i) the fulfilment cash flows that relate to services that will be provided
under the contracts in future periods and (ii) any remaining CSM at that date.

The LIC is the Company’s obligation to pay claims for insured events that have already incurred, including
events that have incurred but for which claims have not been reported.

The LIC is nil at the inception of the contract and is recognised when the insured event ocours or when
the first claim for a group of insurance contracts is incurred. Liabilities move from the LRC to the LIC over
time as the cashflows emerge until the claims and expenses are settied.

The definition of an insured event is straightforward for some of the Company'’s lines of business, being,
for example, the policyholder's death. However, for disability and long-term care, where a series of
payments are made following a valid claim, there are two ways to define the insured event. The insured
event is either the accident/iliness/event that caused the disability or the requirement for long term care
(“LIC approach”) or the determination of the ultimate claim cost (‘LRC approach”). The Company's
approach for disability and long-term care is to adopt the LRC approach. As a result, all future payments

on these contracts remain within the LRC until the payments become due, when they become part of the
LIC.

Subsequent measurement of fulfiiment cash flows

The fulfilment cash flows of groups of contracts are measured at the reporting date using current estimates
of future cash flows, current discount rates and current estimates of the risk adjustment for non-financial
risk. Changes in the fulfilment cash flows are recognised as follows:

a) changes relating to future services are adjusted against the CSM (or recognised in the insurance
service result in profit or loss if the group is onerous), including:
- experience adjustments, measured at the discount rates determined on initial recognition;
- changes in estimates of the present value of future cash flows in the LRC; and
- changes in the risk adjustment for non-financial risk that relate to future service;

b) changes relating to current or past services are recognised in the insurance service result in profit or
loss; and

c) effects of the time value of money, financial risk and changes therein on estimated future cash flows
are recognised as insurance finance income or expenses.

Experience adjustment is the difference between:

» for premium receipts and acquisition cash flows, the estimate at the beginning of the period of the
amounts expected in the period and the actual cash flows in the period; or

» forinsurance service expenses, the estimate at the beginning of the period of the amounts expected
to be incurred in the period and the actual amounts incurred in the period.

Page 18 of 80



SCOR Reinsurance Company (Asia) Limited

Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2024

1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Insurance contracts (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Subsequent measurement of fulfilment cash flows (Continued)

Experience adjustment that relates to future services adjusts the CSM, whilst the adjustment related to
current and past service is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement of CSM

At the end of each reporting period, the carrying amount of the CSM of a group of contracts equals the
carrying amount at the start of the reporting period adjusted for:

a) the effect of any new contracts added to the group during the reporting period;

b) interest accreted on the carrying amount of the CSM during the reporting period, measured at the
discount rates locked in at initial recognition;

¢) thechanges in the fulfiment cash flows relating to future service, like change in biometric assumptions,
future new business recognised based on the reassessed contract boundary, actuarial model updates:

d) the effect of any currency exchange differences on the CSM;

e) the amount recognised as insurance revenue for service provided during the period; and

f) experience adjustments related to future service.

The CSMis not adjusted for the effect of the time value of money and the effect of financial risk and neither
for changes in estimates of the fulfilment cash flows in the LIC.

Transition approach
Upon the adoption of HKFRS 17, full retrospective approach has been applied to P&C reinsurance

contracts. Under the full retrospective approach, at the transition date (i.e. 1 January 2022), the
Company:

» identified, recognised and measured each group of insurance contracts issued and reinsurance
contracts held as if HKFRS 17 had always been applied;

» identified, recognised and measured any assets for insurance acquisition cash flows as if HKFRS
17 had always been applied, except that the recoverability assessment related to insurance
acquisition cash flows was not applied before 1 January 2022;

» derecognised previously reported balances that would not have existed if HKFRS 17 had always
been applied. These included deferred acquisition costs for insurance contracts, insurance
receivables and payables, etc. Under HKFRS 17, these are included in the measurement of the
insurance contracts;

» recognised any resulting net difference in equity.

For the L&H reinsurance contracts, the Company applied the modified retrospective approach or the fair
value approach in HKFRS 17 to identify, recognise and measure certain groups of contracts at 1 January
2022 because it was impracticable to apply the full retrospective approach.
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1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Insurance contracts (Continued)
Transition approach (Continued)

The Company considered the full retrospective approach impracticable for those contracts under any of
the following circumstances:

The effects of retrospective application were not determinable because the information required had
not been collected (or had not been collected with sufficient granularity) and was unavailable because
of system migrations, data retention requirements or other reasons;

The full retrospective approach required assumptions about what the intentions of the Company’s
management would have been in previous periods or significant accounting estimates that could not
be made without the use of hindsight.

Modified retrospective approach

For certain groups of L&H reinsurance contracts, the Company has used the following procedures to
determine the CSM at initial recognition for these contracts:

a)

Estimated future cash flows at the date of initial recognition as the amount of the future cash flows at
the transition date, adjusted by the cash flows that have occurred between the date of initial
recognition and the transition date. The cash flows that are known to have occurred include cash
flows resulting from contracts that ceased to exist before the transition date.

Estimated historical discount rates applied to some cash flows in the period prior to 2022 using an
observable market interest curve for that period, adjusted by the average spread between the
observable market yield curves and the yield curve used to determine current discount rates.

Estimated the risk adjustment for non-financial risk at the date of initial recognition by adjusting the
risk adjustment at the transition date by the expected release of risk in the periods before transition.
The expected release of risk was determined with reference to the release of risk for similar contracts
that the Company has issued subsequent to the transition date.

The CSM at the transition date has been further determined by:

a)

b)

using the modified discount rates determined at initial recognition to accrete interest on the CSM: and

applying the amount of the CSM recognised in profit or loss because of the transfer of services before
the transition date, by comparing the remaining coverage units at that date with the coverage units
provided under the group of contracts before the transition date.

The Company has elected to disaggregate insurance finance income or expenses between amounts
included in profit or loss and amounts included in other comprehensive income and reset the cumulative
amount of insurance finance income or expenses recognised in other comprehensive income at the
transition date to zero.
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1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Insurance contracts (Continued)

Transition approach (Continued)

Fair value approach

For certain groups of L&H reinsurance contracts where the fair value approach was applied, the Company
has determined the CSM of the LRC at the transition date, as the difference between the fair value of the
group of insurance contracts and the fulfilment cash flows measured at that date. In determining fair value,
the Company has applied the requirements of HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”, except for the
demand deposit floor requirement.

The Company has aggregated contracts issued more than one year apart in determining groups of
insurance contracts under the fair value approach at transition as it did not have reasonable and
supportable information to aggregate groups into those including only contracts issued within one year,

For the application of the fair value approach, the Company has used reasonable and supportable
information available at the transition date in order to;

¢ identify groups of insurance contracts;
¢ determine whether any contracts are direct participating insurance contracts; and
» identify any discretionary cash flows for insurance contracts without direct participation features.

The Company has elected to disaggregate insurance finance income or expenses between amounts
included in profit or loss and amounts included in other comprehensive income and reset the cumulative
amount of insurance finance income or expenses recognised in other comprehensive income at the
transition date to zero, ‘

The Company used the income approach to determine the fair value amount used for establishing the
insurance contract liabilities at the transition date.

Presentation
Portfolios of reinsurance contracts issued in an asset position are presented separately from those in a

liability position, and portfolios of reinsurance contracts issued are presented separately from portfolios of
reinsurance contracts held.

Any assets for insurance acquisition cash flows recognised before the corresponding insurance contracts
are recognised are included in the carrying amount of the related portfolios of insurance contracts issued.

The Company'’s performance is mainly depicted through the insurance service result (the income earned
from providing insurance coverage), comprising insurance revenue and insurance service expenses, and
insurance finance income and expenses (investment income from managing assets and financial
expenses from discounting insurance liabilities). Insurance revenue and insurance service expenses
presented in the profit or loss exclude any investment income.

" The Company does not disaggregate changes in the risk adjustment for non-financial risk between the
insurance service result and insurance finance income or expenses. All changes in the risk adjustment for
non-financial risk are included in the insurance service result.
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1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Insurance contracts (Continued)

Presentation (Continued)

Insurance revenue

Insurance revenue depicts the provision of coverage and other services arising from the groups of
insurance contracts at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for those services. It covers amounts related to the provision of services and amounts
related to insurance acquisition cash flows.

Insurance revenue relating to services provided for each period represents the total of the changes in the
LRC that relate to services for which the Company expects to receive consideration, but excludes
expected investment components and mainly includes the following items:

a) arelease of the CSM, measured based on coverage units provided;

b) changes in the risk adjustment for non-financial risk relating to current services;

c) claims and other insurance service expenses incurred in the period, generally measured at the
amounts expected at the beginning of the period; and

d) experience adjustments for premium receipts for current or past services.

The amount of release of the CSM is determined by identifying the coverage units in the group, allocating
the CSM remaining at the end of the reporting period (before any allocation) equally to each coverage unit
provided in the current period and expected to be provided in future periods, and recognising in profit or
loss the amount of the CSM allocated to coverage units provided in the current period. Refer to section
“critical accounting estimates and judgements” for the details of management's judgement applied to the
amortisation of CSM based on coverage units. ‘

Insurance service expenses
Insurance service expenses mainly include the following items:

a) incurred claims and other incurred insurance service expenses;

b) amortisation of insurance acquisition cash flows on a straight-line or coverage-unit basis over the
coverage period of the group of contracts;

C) losses on onerous contracts and reversal of such losses; and

d) adjustments to the LIC that do not arise from the effects of the time value of money, financial risk and
changes therein.

Loss components

The Company establishes a loss component of the LRC for an onerous group representing the losses
recognised. After the Company has recognised a loss on an onerous group of insurance contracts, it
allocates the subsequent changes in fulfiiment cash flows of the LRC on a systematic basis between the
loss component and the LRC excluding the loss component.

The systematic allocation results in the total amounts allocated to the loss component being equal to zero
by the end of the coverage period of the concerned group of contracts.
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1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Insurance contracts (Continued)

Presentation (Continued)

Insurance finance income or expenses

insurance finance income or expenses comprises the change in the carrying amount of the group of
insurance contracts arising from (i) the effect of the time value of money and changes in the time value of
money; and (i) the effect of financial risk and changes in financial risk.

The Company has elected the accounting policy choice to disaggregate the insurance finance income or
expenses between the statement of income and the statement of other comprehensive income. The
capitalisation of the interests based on the locked-in rate is presented in profit or loss, while the difference
between the valuation at current and locked-in rate is presented in other comprehensive income. The
Company adopts this option for all groups of insurance contracts.

Contract modification and derecognition
The Company derecognises a contract only when it is extinguished, i.e. when the specified obligations in
the contract expire or are discharged or cancelled.

If the terms of a contract are modified in a way that would have changed the accounting for the contract
significantly, had the new terms always existed, the Company derecognises the original contract and
recognises the modified contract as a new contract from the date of modification. The new contract
recognised is measured assuming that, at the date of modification, the Company received the premium
that it would have charged less any additional premium charged for the modification.

When a contract in a group of contracts is derecognised:

a) the group of contracts is adjusted to eliminate the present value of future cash flows and risk
adjustment for non-financial risk related to the derecognised contract;

b) the number of coverage units for expected remaining insurance contract services is adjusted to reflect
the coverage units derecognised from the group, and the amount of the CSM recognised in profit or
loss in the period is based on that adjusted number; and

¢) the CSMis adjusted as follows:
- ifthe contract is extinguished, the CSM is adjusted in the same amount as the adjustment to the
fulfilment cash flows relating to future services;
- if a contract is derecognised because it is transferred to a third party, the CSM is also adjusted
for the premium charged by the third party, unless the group is onerous.

If a contract modification does not result in derecognition, then the Company treats the changes in cash
flows caused by the modification as changes in estimates of the fulfiment cash flows.
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Retrocession (reinsurance contracts held)
The Company also purchases reinsurance contracts to cover its own risk exposures. Reinsurance of a
reinsurer’s business is referred to as retrocession. The Company remains primarily liable to the direct

insurer on all risks reinsured although the retrocessionaire is liable to the Company to the extent of the
cover limits purchased.

For groups of reinsurance contracts held, the Company applies the same accounting policies as that
applied to reinsurance contracts issued, with the following modifications.

Level of aggregation

The Company considered the level of aggregation to be at treaty level, i.e. one retrocession contract
represents one group of underlying contracts.

Initial recognition
The Company recognises a group of reinsurance contracts held it has entered into from the earliest of the
following:

a) the beginning of the coverage period of the group of reinsurance contracts held, or at the initial
recognition of any underlying contract, whichever is the later; and

b) the date the Company recognises an onerous group of underlying insurance contracts if the Company
entered into the related insurance contract held at or before that date.

For proportional reinsurance contracts held, this approach implies that a retrocession contract will not be
recognised before the underlying assumed reinsurance contract is effective.

Presentation

Net income (expenses) from reinsurance contracts held

The Company separately presents income or expenses from reinsurance contracts held from the
expenses or income from reinsurance contracts issued and is presented on a net basis as “net income
(expenses) from reinsurance contracts held” in the insurance service result.

Special consideration for retrocession

Loss recovery component

Retrocession can result in a net cost or gain recognised respectively as a positive or negative reinsurance
CSM. A loss recovery component can be created on initial recognition where the underlying contracts are
onerous at their initial recognition and the reinsurance contract limits this loss. Such treatment allows an
immediate gain in profit or loss to offset the amount of loss component of the underlying contracts also
recognised in profit or loss. The loss recovery component is subsequently amortised as part of the
reinsurance result with the same pattern as the corresponding loss component.

A loss recovery component is also created on subsequent measurement, i.e. in instances where a loss
component of an underlying contract arises subsequent to initial recognition.

Non-performance risk

The Company recognises the effect of non-performance risk by the reinsurer in the estimates of the
present value of the future cash flows. Changes in the fulfilment cash flows that result from changes in
the non-performance risk by the issuer of a reinsurance contract held, where material, are recognised in
insurance finance income and expenses.
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Financial instruments

Financial assets

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments and on a trade date basis,

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i) the Company's contractual rights to future
cash flows from the financial asset expire or (ii) the Company transfers the financial asset and either
(a) it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset but it
does not retain control of the financial asset.

Classification and measurement

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a significant financing component) are initially
recognised at their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not carried at fair value through profit
or loss ("FVPL"), transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.
Such trade receivables are initially measured at their transaction price.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i) measured at amortised cost; (ii) debt
investment measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (“Mandatory FVOCI"); (iii)
equity investment measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (“Designated FVOCI™);
or (iv) measured at FVPL,

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the Company's business model
for managing the financial assets and the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics.
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company
changes its business model for managing them, in which case all affected financial assets are
reclassified on the first day of the first annual reporting period following the change in the business
model.

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract in which a host is an asset within the scope of HKFRS 9
are not separated from the host. Instead, the entire hybrid contract is assessed for classification.

1)  Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(iy itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest method
and are subject to impairment, Gains and losses arising from impairment, derecognition or
through the amortisation process are recognised in profit or loss.

The Company's financial assets at amortised cost include loan to a fellow subsidiary, due from
group companies, deposits and other receivables and cash and bank balances.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

2)

3)

Mandatory FVOCI/

A financial asset is measured at Mandatory FVOCI if both of the following conditions are met and
is not designated as at FVPL:

(i) itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and for sale; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value. Interest calculated using the effective
interest method, impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or [oss. Other gains or losses are recognised in other comprehensive income
until the financial asset is derecognised. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
as a reclassification adjustment.

The Company’s financial assets at Mandatory FVOCI include debt instruments.

Financial assets at FVPL

These investments include financial assets that are not measured at amortised cost or FVOCI,
including financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition as
at FVPL and financial assets that are otherwise required to be measured at FVPL, They are carried
at fair value, with any resultant gain and loss recognised in profit or loss, which does not include
any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets. Dividend or interest income is presented
separately from fair value gain or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is:

(iy acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term;

(i) part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which
there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking on initial recognition; or

(i) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee contract or not a designated and effective hedging
instrument,

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition as at FVPL only if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from
measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on them on different bases.

The Company's financial assets mandatorily measured at FVPL include equity instruments and
derivative financial instruments.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward foreign currency contracts, to
manage its foreign currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair
value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at
fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the
fair value is negative,

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives that do not qualify for hedge
accounting are taken directly to profit or loss for the year.

The fair value of forward foreign currency contracts is calculated by reference to current forward
exchange rates for contracts with similar maturity profiles.

Financial liabilities

Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the liability is extinguished, that is, when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and measurement
Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value plus, in the case of financial liabilities not
carried at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial liabilities.

The Company's financial liabilities include due to group companies, other payables and accrued
liabilities and derivatives. All financial liabilities, except for derivative financial instruments, are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method, unless the effect of discounting would be insignificant, in which case they are stated
at cost.

Financial liabilities at FVPL include financial liabilities held for trading. They are carried at fair value,
with any resultant gain and loss (excluding interest expenses) recognised in profit or loss.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is:

(i) incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term;

(iiy part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking on initial recognition; or

(i} a derivative that is not a financial guarantee contract or not a designated and effective hedging
instrument.

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract with a host that is not an asset within the scope of HKFRS
9 are treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a derivative, their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host, and the hybrid contract is not
measured at FVPL.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses ("ECL") on financial assets that
are measured at amortised cost and Mandatory FVOCI to which the impairment requirements apply
in accordance with HKFRS 9. Except for the specific treatments as detailed below, at each reporting
date, the Company measures a loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to the lifetime
ECL if the credit risk on that financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the
credit risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company
measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e. the present value of all cash shortfalls)
over the expected life of the financial instrument,

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the difference between the contractual cash
flows that are due to an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default events over the expected life
of a financial instrument while 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on the
following one or more shared credit risk characteristics:

(i) past due information

(i}  nature of instrument

(i) industry of debtors

(iv) geographical location of debtors
(v) external credit risk ratings

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to refiect changes in the financial instrument's
credit risk and loss since initial recognition. The resulting changes in the loss allowance are recognised
as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount
of the financial instrument, except in the case of Mandatory FVOCI, the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the revaluation reserve (recycling).

Definition of default

The Company considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit risk
management purposes as historical experience indicates that the Company may not receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full if the financial instrument that meets any of the following criteria.

(i) information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Company, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Company); or

(iy there is a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Company considers that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Company has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Company compares the risk of a defauit occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Company considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort. In particular, the following information is taken
into account in the assessment:

the debtor's failure to make payments of principal or interest on the due dates;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor; and

actual or expected changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment that have
or may have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its obligation to the Company.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Company presumes that the credit risk on
a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has
not increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have low
credit risk at the reporting date.

Low credit risk
A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(iy ithas a low risk of default;

(i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(ii) adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The financial instruments which are determined to have low credit risk are detailed in note 19 to the
financial statements.

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired include observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower.

(b) abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event.

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider.

(d) itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(f) the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit

losses.

Page 29 of 80



SCOR Reinsurance Company (Asia) Limited

Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2024

1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Write-off _

The Company writes off a financial asset when the Company has no reasonable expectations of
recovering the contractual cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof, based on
historical experience of recoveries of similar assets. The Company expects no significant recovery from
the amount written off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due, taking into account legal advice
if appropriate. Any subsequent recovery is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is calculated as the higher of
the asset's or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case, the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount of an asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Company’s cash management and excluding amounts assigned to secure
bank guarantees. For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and bank balances comprise
cash on hand and at banks which are not restricted as to use.
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1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or

contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets
The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the
date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumuiated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities.

The cost of right-of-use assets includes

(i) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liabilities;

(i) any initial direct costs incurred by the Company;

(iiiy any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received; and

(iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Company in dismantling and removing the
underlying assets, restoring the site on which they are located or restoring the underlying
assets to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term
and the estimated useful lives of the right-of-use assets, which is 3 years for the building.

(b) Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured
at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term.

The lease payments include

(i) fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable;

(i) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,

(i) amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees;

(iv) the exercise price of a purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise
that option; and

(v) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company
exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses
(unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.
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1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

Company as a lessee (Continued)

(b) Lease liabilities (Continued)
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease
is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a
change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a
change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e.
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition
exemption to leases that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the Company's articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Taxation
Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authority, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences and carryforward of unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences
and the carryforward of unused tax losses can be utilised.
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1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency translation

These financial statements are presented in United States Dollars, which is the Company’s functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded using the functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

The Company has chosen the single-currency denomination to account for multi-currency groups of
insurance contracts under HKFRS 17. For the purpose of translating foreign exchange items into the

respective functional and reporting currencies, the Company treats insurance contracts as a monetary
item.

Employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Company operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme
(the "MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who
are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
participating employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Company in an independently
administered fund. The Company's employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The Company also operates a defined contribution retirement benefits scheme (the “Scheme”) under
the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance for those employees who were eligible to participate.
This Scheme operates in a similar way to the MPF Scheme.

Paid leave carried forward

The Company provides paid annual leave to its employees under their employment contracts on a
calendar year basis. Under certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the end
of the reporting period is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the respective employees in
the following year. An accrual is made at the end of the reporting period for the expected future cost
of such paid leave earned during the year by the employees and carried forward.

Share-based payments

The Company's ultimate holding company operates several equity-settled share-based compensation
plans for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Company's operations. Employees (including directors) of the Company receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”) issued by the Company’s ultimate
holding company.

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured
by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by
the ultimate holding company using a binomial model, further details of which are given in note 15 to
the financial statements.

Page 33 of 80



SCOR Reinsurance Company (Asia) Limited

Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2024

1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in capital
contribution from the ultimate holding company, over the period in which the performance and/or
service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at
the end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and the Company'’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the profit or loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all non-
market vesting and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as
if the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense
is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award
where non-vesting conditions within the control of either the Company or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The Company has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2 in respect of equity-settled awards
and has applied HKFRS 2 only to equity-settled awards granted after 7 November 2002 that had not
vested by 1 January 2005 and to those granted on or after 1 January 2005.

Related parties
Arelated party is a person or entity that is related to the Company.

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Company if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Company;
(ii) has significant influence over the Company; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Company or of the parent of the
Company.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Company if any of the following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Company are members of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the

Company or an entity related to the Company. If the Company is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related to the Company.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viliy  The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Company or to the parent of the Company.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;
(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and
(c) dependants of that person or that person'’s spouse or domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture
includes subsidiaries of the joint venture.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Company makes estimates, assumptions and judgements that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities. Estimates, assumptions and judgements are continually evaluated based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are described below.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)

Level of aggregation and recognition of group of reinsurance contracts issued and reinsurance contracts
held

The Company applies GMM to recognise the reinsurance contracts issued and reinsurance contracts
held. The judgements exercised in determining whether contracts are onerous on initial recognition or
those that have no significant possibility of becoming onerous subsequently are:

e Dbased on the likelihood of changes in assumptions which, if they occurred, would result in the
contracts becoming onerous; and

» using information about profitability estimation for the relevant group of contracts.

The accounting policy on level of aggregation and recognition of group of insurance contracts is described
in sections “insurance contracts” and “retrocession (reinsurance contracts held)".

Measurement of fulfilment cash flows

The fulfilment cash flows of insurance contracts represent the present value of estimated future cash
outflows, less the present value of estimated future cash inflows and adjusted for a provision for the risk
adjustment for non-financial risk. The assumptions used and the techniques for estimating fulfiilment cash
flows are based on actual experience by each geographical market and policy form. The Company
exercises significant judgement in making appropriate assumptions and techniques.

The Company estimates the probabilities and amounts of future payments under existing contracts based
on information obtained, including:

e information about claims already reported by cedants;
» other information about the known or estimated characteristics of the insurance contracts;

» historical data about the Company’s own experience, supplemented when necessary with data from
other sources; and

e current pricing information.

Discount rates used fo discount fulfiiment cash flows

The Company adjusts the estimates of future cash flows to reflect the time value of money and the
financial risks related to those cash flows, to the extent that the financial risks are not included in the
estimates of cash flows. To determine the discount rate, the valuation technique developed by the
Company uses a bottom-up approach based on risk-free rates whenever possible, otherwise Interbank
Offered Rates (‘IBOR") swap rates or government bond rates, the Nelson-Siegel extrapolation method
and an illiquidity premium depending on the characteristics of a reference portfolio of fixed income assets.

The illiquidity premium is computed based on the spread of the reference portfolio over the HKFRS 17
risk-free rate adjusted to remove any non-liquidity related effects, especially credit risk. The Company
determines the degree of business liquidity based on a number of characteristics, including the ability to
lapse, insurance benefits attached, degree of volatility and the term of the contracts. Depending on the
liquidity characteristics, the Company’s business is allocated to one of the three different illiquidity buckets:

a) llliquid bucket with a rate of 100% applied to the full illiquidity premium
It is applied to contracts for which cash flows have a certain degree of predictability. This includes
long-tail P&C lines of business and L&H businesses other than gross assumed short-term business.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)

Discount rates used to discount fulfilment cash flows (Continued)

b) Medium-illiquid bucket with a rate of 50% applied to the full illiquidity premium
It is applied to contracts with cash outflows that are less likely to be paid in the first few years after
inception and therefore less "liquid”. This includes medium-term P&C lines of business.

¢) Liquid bucket with no illiquidity premium
It is applied to contracts for which the Company might be called to settle the liabilities at any moment
after the inception period. This bucket includes short-tail P&C lines of business and non-proportional
retrocession, as well as short-term gross assumed L&H business.

Refer to note 12(i) to the financial statements for the details of discount rates adopted.

Approaches used in determining risk adjustments to non-financial risk

The Company has changed its estimation technique from the “cost-of-capital” approach to apply the
“value-at-risk” approach which considers the non-financial insurance risks and a retained confidence level
range for the Company. The value-at-risk is assessed using the aggregated probability distribution from
the Company'’s internal model which reflects the losses associated with confidence levels all along the
distribution. The risk adjustment for non-financial risk net of reinsurance held corresponds to a confidence
level on an ultimate time horizon ranging from 75% to 80%.

Amortisation of CSM and determination of coverage units — reinsurance contracts issued

CSM represents the unearned profits that the Company will recognise as it provides services under the
insurance contracts in a group. The amounts of CSM recognised in profit or loss are determined by
identifying the coverage units in the group, allocating the CSM at the end of period equally to each
coverage unit provided in the current period and expected to be provided in the future. The number of
coverage units in a group is the quantity of the services provided by the contracts in the group, determined
by considering for each contract the quantity of the services provided under a contract and its expected
coverage period. The Company exercises judgements in determining the quantity of the services provided
under a contract which will affect the amounts recognised in the financial statements as insurance
revenue from reinsurance contracts issued.

The CSM of a group of contracts is recognised as insurance revenue in each period based on the number
of coverage units provided in the period, which is determined by considering for each contract the quantity
of the services provided, its expected coverage period and the time value of money.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)

Amortisation of CSM and determination of coverage units — reinsurance contracts issued (Continued)
For reinsurance contracts issued, identifying coverage units involves determining the quantity of benefits
provided during the coverage period, in order to define the amount of CSM to be released in each
reporting period. The determination of coverage units involves judgement and estimates to best achieve
the principle of reflecting the services provided in each period. Those judgements and estimates are
applied systematically and rationally. The amount recognised in profit or loss is determined by:

e identifying the coverage units in the group of contracts, which is the quantity of services provided by
the contracts in the group, determined by considering for each contract the quantity of the benefits
provided under a contract and its expected coverage period;

o allocating the CSM at the end of the period (before recognising any amounts in profit or loss to reflect
the insurance contract services provided in the period) equally to each coverage unit provided in the
current period and expected to be provided in the future; and

» recognising in profit or loss the amount allocated to coverage units provided in the period.

The predominant factors used by the directors of the Company to determine the quantity of benefits
provided for each type of reinsurance contracts issued are as follows:

e L&H reinsurance contracts issued — the end-of-period sum assured
s P&C reinsurance contracts issued — earned premium patterns

Amortisation of CSM and determination of coverage units — reinsurance contracts held
For L&H reinsurance contracts held, the CSM of contracts with a coverage period greater than one year
are amortised based on the projected retroceded coverage units.

For P&C reinsurance confracts held with proportional retrocession, amortisation of CSM is proportionated
to the CSM amortised of the underlying reinsurance contracts assumed; for non-proportional retrocession,
a linear amortization pattern is applied.

Deferred tax assets

As at the end of the reporting period, deferred tax assets of US$472,382 (2023: US$1,426,000) and
US$15,494,852 (2023: USSNIl} in relation to unused tax losses and one-off tax impact from the
implementation of a risk-based capital (‘RBC”) regime have been recognised in the statement of financial
position respectively. The recognition of the deferred tax assets mainly depends on whether sufficient
future profits or taxable temporary differences will be available in the future. In cases where the actual
future profits generated are less than expected, a material reversal of deferred tax assets may arise,
which would be recognised in profit or loss in the period in which such a reversal takes place.

Page 38 of 80



SCOR Reinsurance Company (Asia) Limited

Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2024

1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Future changes in HKFRS Accounting Standards

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new /
revised HKFRS Accounting Standards that are not yet effective for the current year, which the
Company has not early adopted.

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability [

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments 12l

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Volume 11 @
Accounting Standards

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and Contracts Referencing Nature-dependent Electricity 12
HKFRS 7

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements B

HKFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures @

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025
[ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026
Bl Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027

The management is in the process of assessing the possible impact on the future adoption of these
new / revised HKFRS Accounting Standards, but is not yet in a position to reasonably estimate their
impact on the Company’s financial statements.
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INSURANCE REVENUE, INVESTMENT AND OTHER OPERATING INCOME

An analysis of insurance revenue, investment and other operating income is as follows:

2024 2023
Notes P&C L&H Total P&C L&H Total
Uss Uss$ Uss$ Uss$ " Uss Uss
Amounts relating to changes
in liabilities for remaining
coverage
Expected incurred claims and
other insurance service
expenses (a) 14,280,890 74,093,355 88,374,345 19,376,600 62,461,760 81,838,360
Change in risk adjustment for
non-financial risk for risk
expired 461,078 3,289,062 3,750,140 528,029 1,274,018 1,802,047
CSM recognised for services
provided 2,530,073 8,064,859 10,594,932 1,560,334 7,794,120 9,354,454
17,272,144 85,447,276 102,719,417 21,464,963 71,529,898 82,994,861
Recovery of insurance
acquisition cash flows 249,303 249,303 477,439 477,439
Total insurance revenue 17,521,444 85,447,276 102,968,720 21,942,402 71,529,898 93,472,300
Note:
(a) Including experience adjustments on premiums received for past or current services,
2024 2023
Uss$ Us$
Investment income, net
Interest income from investments in debt securities 5,082,126 4,373,075
Interest income from loan to a fellow subsidiary 1,733,417 424,270
Dividend income from unit trusts 30,847 24,919
Allowance for expected credit loss of investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income (263,548) (23,382)
Fair value gain on investments in equity instruments 10,472,148 6,143,140
Gain on disposal of investments in equity instruments 120,464 5,149,404
Gain (Loss) on disposal of investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income 130,079 (63,428)
17,305,533 16,037,998
Other operating income
Management fee income received — recognised over time
(note 18) 4,864,829 4,704,247
Bank deposits interest income 371,916 602,775
5,236,745 5,307,022
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3. EXPENSES

In accordance with HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements”, the Company has opted to present
expenses by function in the statement of profit or loss. Expenses excluding gross commission are
allocated to four categories (acquisition and administrative expenses, claims settlement expenses,
investment management expenses and other operating expenses) based on allocation keys defined

by management.

2024 2023
Notes uUss$ US$

Employee benefits expense (including directors’

remuneration):
Wages and salaries 7,264,881 7,611,051
Pension contributions 207,949 234,749
Equity-settled share-based payment expense 331,754 400,552
7,804,584 8,246,352
Auditor’s remuneration 291,256 326,454
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 6(a) 60,117 112,103
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 6(b) 673,869 696,692
Management fee paid to group companies 18 13,372,321 12,620,075
Other costs 3,543,001 2,808,251
Total expenses 25,745,148 24,809,927
Represented by:

Acquisition and administrative expenses 13,637,930 12,996,218
Claims settlement expenses 485,969 550,327
Other attributable operating expenses 416,836 386,443

Attributable expenses, included in insurance
service expenses 14,540,735 13,032,988
Other non-attributable operating expenses 10,907,848 10,501,071
Investment management expenses 296,565 375,868
Non-attributable expenses 11,204,413 10,876,939
Total expenses 25,745,148 24,809,927
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INCOME TAX CREDIT
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the concessionary tax rate of 8.25% (2023: 8.25%).

On 13 July 2018, the Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 6) Ordinance 2018 was gazetted, in which
one of the key elements is to amend the reinsurance preferential regime to remove their ring-fencing
feature. Under the preferential regime, the assessable profits of an insurance corporation derived from
the business of reinsurance as a professional reinsurer would be subject to a concessionary tax rate
of 8.25%, applying to tax payable for a year of assessment beginning on or after 1 April 2018.

In the opinion of directors, the preferential regime is applicable to the Company for the assessable
profits derived from the business of reinsurance for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

During the year, the Company provided management services to group companies for their insurance
contracts and received management fee income, which was derived from non-reinsurance activities.
Accordingly, the assessable profits from non-reinsurance activities are subject to normal profits tax
rate of 16.5% (2023: 16.5%).

2024 2023
Us$ Uss$
Current tax
Current year - -
Under provision in prior years - 7,183
- 7,183
Deferred taxation
Benefit of tax losses recognised - (1,426,000)
Utilisation of tax losses previously recognised 953,618 -
Timing difference in the recognition of insurance
service result and finance income and
expenses (1,861,663) (119,437)
(908,045) (1,545,437)
Tax credit for the year (908,045) (1,538,254)
Reconciliation of tax credit
2024 2023
Us$ Us$
Profit (Loss) before tax 3,972,652 57,749,4722
Tax at the concessionary tax rate of 8.25% (2023: 8.25%) 327,744 (639,331)
Income not subject to tax (1,051,942) (1,255,289)
Expenses not deductible for tax 67,828 302,451
Others (251,675) 53,915
Tax credit for the year (908,045) (1,538,254)
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DIVIDEND

There is no dividend approved and paid during the year (2023: US$Ni).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS, AND LEASE LIABILITIES

(a) Property, plant and equipment

Furniture,
Data fixtures
Leasehold processing and other
improvements equipment equipment  Motor vehicles Total
Us$ Use Us$ Us$ Us$
Cost
At 1 January 2024 679,930 459,646 352,422 71,443 1,563,441
Additions - 20,057 - - 20,057
Disposal - (84,776) (62,552) - (147,328)
At 31 December 2024 679,930 394,927 289,870 71,443 1,436,170
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2024 671,451 399,434 295,875 61,525 1,428,285
Provided during the year 4,626 28,186 17,387 9,918 60,117
Disposal - (84,776) (62,552) - (147,328)
At 31 December 2024 676,077 342,844 250,710 71,443 1,341,074
Net book value
At 31 December 2024 3,853 52,083 39,160 - 95,096
Furniture,
Data fixtures
Leasehold processing and other
improvements equipment equipment Motor vehicles Total
US$ Ussg Us$ uss US$
Cost
At 1 January 2023 679,930 454,757 351,488 71,443 1,667,618
Additions - 24,766 934 - 25,700
Disposal - (19,877) - - (18,877)
At 31 December 2023 679,930 459,646 352,422 71,443 1,663,441
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2023 626,052 384,699 275,690 49,618 1,336,059
Provided during the year 45,399 34,612 20,185 11,907 112,103
Disposal - (19,877) - - (19,877)
At 31 December 2023 671,451 399,434 295,875 61,525 1,428,285
Net book value
At 31 December 2023 8,479 60,212 56,547 9,918 135,156
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6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS, AND LEASE LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

The Company has a lease contract for building used in its operations. Lease of building has a lease

term of 3 years (2023: 3 years). Generally, the Company is restricted from assigning and subleasing
the leased assets.

(iy  The carrying amounts of the Company’s right-of-use assets and the movements during the years
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

Building
Uss$
Cost
At 1 January 2024 and
at 31 December 2024 2,021,605
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2024 617,712
Charge for the year 673,869
At 31 December 2024 1,291,581
Net carrying amount
At 31 December 2024 730,024
Building
Uss$
Cost
At 1 January 2023 3,791,028
Additions 2,021,605
Derecognition (3,791,028)
At 31 December 2023 2,021,605
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2023 3,712,048
Charge for the year 696,692
Derecognition (3,791,028)
At 31 December 2023 617,712
Net carrying amount
At 31 December 2023 1,403,893
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6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS, AND LEASE LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities (Continued)

(iy The carrying amounts of the Company’s lease liabilities and the movements during the years
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

2024 2023
Uss Us$
At 1 January 1,424,765 88,264
New lease - 2,021,605
Accretion of interest 39,031 56,890
Payments (706,334) (741,994)
At 31 December 757,462 1,424,765
Current 698,120 670,294
Non-current 59342 754471
(i) The Company has recognised the following amounts for the year:
2024 2023
Uss Us$
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 673,869 696,692
Interest on lease liabilities 39,031 56,890
Expenses recognised in profit or loss 712,900 753,582

(iv) During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company had total cash outflow for leases of
US$706,334 (2023: US$741,994).
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7. INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
2024 2023
Note Uuss$ US$

Mandatorily measured at FVOC/
Debt securities, at fair value:
Listed and issued by Governments outside
Hong Kong, SAR 21 33,787,247 41,077,823
Listed outside Hong Kong, SAR 21 90,206,665 99,038,621

123,993,912 140,116,444

The fair values of the listed investments are based on quoted market bid prices.

Information about the Company’s exposure to credit risks and loss allowance for investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income is included in note 19 to the financial statements.

8. INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2024 2023
Note us$ Us$
Equity securities mandatorily measured at FVPL
Unlisted unit trusts, at fair value 21 108,315,328 103,844,325

The fair values of the unlisted investments are based on net asset value of investments as reported
by the fund administrator.

Included in investments in unit trusts are unit trusts of US$61,646,658 (2023: US$59,576,974) which
are managed by a fellow subsidiary, SCOR Investment Partners SE.

9. DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2024 2023
Uss$ US$
Interest receivables 1,068,056 1,148,104
Other deposits and receivables 2,059,585 2,768,365
3,127,641 3,916,469

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial assets included in the above
balances relate to receivables for which there has been no recent history of default. Information about
the Company’s exposure to credit risks and loss allowance for deposits and other receivables is
included in note 19 to the financial statements.

The carrying amounts of deposits and other receivables approximate their fair values.
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10.

M.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

2024 2023

Note Us$ Us$

Forward foreign currency contracts — due from 21 145,788 455,596
Forward foreign currency contracts — due to 21 (756,450) (1,715,659)

(610,662) (1,260,063)

The Company has entered into various forward foreign currency contracts to manage its exchange
rate exposures. Loss on forward foreign currency contracts of US$1,495,5668 (2023: US$1,526,199)
representing realised gains/losses and changes in the fair value of currency derivatives was included
in profit or loss during the year.

DUE FROM / TO GROUP COMPANIES

Loan to a fellow subsidiary represents a loan of US$31,000,000 (2023: US$31,000,000) which is
unsecured, bearing interest at 1.2% per annum, and was originally repayable on 18 December 2023.
On 18 December 2023, the loan was extended with revised interest rate of 5.5% per annum and is
repayable on 18 December 2025.

Amounts due from / to ultimate holding company / fellow subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. The carrying amounts of these balances approximate their fair values.

Information about the Company’s exposure to credit risks and loss allowance for amounts due from
group companies is included in note 19 to the financial statements.
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12, INSURANCE CONTRACTS ISSUED AND REINSURANCE CONTRACTS HELD

2024

2023
P&C L&H Total P&C L&H Total
uss uss ussg USss Uss uss
Insurance contracts issued
Assets - - - - 3,521,630 3,521,630
Liabilities (110,005,321) (17,638,010) (127,643,331) (128,349,792) - (128,349,792)
Total insurance contracts
issued (110,005,321) (17,638,010) (127,643,331) (128,349,792) 3,521,630 (124,828,162)
Of which net accounts receivable
arising from insurance
contracts issued 4,638,299 5,940,114 10,578,413 3,600,677 200,015 3,800,692
Insurance contracts issued
excluding net accounts
receivable arising from
insurance contracts issued M M (138221 744 _(131,950,469) _22.1_6.1_5_ w
Of which assets for insurance
acquisition cash flows not yet
allocated to recognised
insurance contracts _1_331_‘426_. — w —m —— 1,580,728
Reinsurance confracts held
Assets 45,226,430 - 45,226,430 59,806,206 - 59,806,206
Liabilities - (11,232,956) (11,232,956) - (29,463,951) (29,463,951)

Total reinsurance contracts
held 45,226,430 (11,232,956) 33,993,474 59,806,206 (29,463,951) 30,342,255
Of which net accounts payable

arising from reinsurance
contracts held (2,912,007) (3,822,584) (6,734,591) (2,815,486) (4,361,009)

(7,176,495)
Reinsurance contracts held
excluding net accounts
payable arising from
. 48,138,437 (7,410,372) 40,728,065 62,621,692 (25,102,942) 37,518,750
reinsurance contracts Neld  sssssswesmesssm—  sss—————
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12.

12(a)

INSURANCE CONTRACTS ISSUED AND REINSURANCE CONTRACTS HELD (CONTINUED)

Insurance contracts issued — Analysis by remaining coverage and incurred claims

P&C
Opening assets
Opening liabilities
Net opening balance

Insurance revenue (note 2)

Insurance service expenses

Incurred claims and other insurance service expenses
Amortisation of insurance acquisition cash flows
Adjustments to liabilities for incurred claims

Losses and reversals of losses on onerous contracts

Investment components
Insurance service result ’

Net finance expenses from insurance contracts issued
Effect of movements in exchange rates

Total changes in statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income

Cash flows

Premiums received

Insurance acquisition cash flows paid

Claims and other insurance service expenses paid,
including investment components

Total cash flows

Net closing balance

Closing assets
Closing liabilities

Net closing balance

2024 2023
Liability for remaining coverage Liability for remaining coverage
Excluding Exciuding
foss Loss Liability for loss Loss Liability for incurred

component component incurred claims Total component component claims Total
ussg uss uss uss Us$ Uuss Uss USs$
(1,285,875) - (130,664,594) (131,950,469) (1,877,214) - (181,221,023) (183,098,237)
{1,285,875) - {130,664,594) (131,950,469) (1,877,214) - (181,221,023) (183,098,237)

17,521,444 - - 17,521,444 21,942,402 - - 21,942,402
- 50,511 (25,874,314) (25,823,803) - - (53,461,245) (53,461,245)
(2,474,817) - - (2,474,817) (477,439) - - (477,439)

- - 18,801,261 18,801,261 - - 54,227,464 54,227,464

- 43,705 - 43,705 - - - -

(2,474,817) 94,216 (7,073,053) (9,453,654) (477,439) - 766,219 288,780

625,119 - (625,119) - (1,175,810) - 1,175,810 -

15,671,746 94,216 (7,698,172) 8,067,790 20,289,153 - 1,942,029 22,231,182
(304,676) - (1,300,158) (1,604,834) (446,799) - (3,829,924) (4,276,723)

(1,244,001) 114 3,013,783 1,769,896 633,733 - 5,687,387 6,321,120

14,123,069 94,330 (5,984,547) 8,232,852 20,476,087 - 3,799,492 24,275,579
(17,383,304) - - (17,383,304) (22,352,507) - - (22,352,507)

2,540,345 - - 2,540,345 2,467,759 - - 2,467,759

- - 23,916,956 23,916,956 - - 46,756,937 46,756,937

(14,842,959) - 23,916,956 9,073,997 (19,884,748) - 46,756,937 26,872,189
(2,005,765) 94,330 (112,732,185) (114,643,620) (1,285,875) - (130,664,594) (131,950,469)

—————— S——————— W————————SS  EESST——  SEECTI— T S ————
(2,005,765) 94,330 (112,732,185) (114,643,620) (1,285,875) - (130,664,594) (131,950,469)
(2,005,765) 94,330 (112,732,185) (114,643,620) (1,285,875) - (130,664,594) (131,950,469)
————— ———————— ———————
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12.

12(a)

INSURANCE CONTRACTS ISSUED AND REINSURANCE CONTRACTS HELD (CONTINUED)

Insurance contracts issued — Analysis by remaining coverage and incurred claims (Continued)

L&H

Opening assets
Opening liabilities
Net opening balance

Insurance revenue {note 2)

Insurance service expenses

Incurred claims and other insurance service expenses
Amortisation of insurance acquisition cash flows
Adjustments to liabilities for incurred claims

Losses and reversals of losses on onerous contracts

Investment components
Insurance service result

Net finance (expenses) income from insurance contracts
issued

Effect of movements in exchange rates

Total changes in statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income

Cash flows

Premiums received

Insurance acquisition cash flows paid

Claims and other insurance service expenses paid,
including investment components

Total cash flows

Net closing balance

Closing assets
Closing liabilities

Net closing balance

2024 2023
Liability for remaining coverage Liability for remaining coverage
Excluding Excluding
loss Loss Liability for loss Loss Liability for incurred
component component incurred claims Total component component claims Total
uss uss uss uss Uss Uss Us$ Uss
90,029,423 730,658 (87,438,466) 3,321,615 82,712,688 195,263 (63,927,480) 18,980,471
90,029,423 730,658 (87,438,466) 3,321,615 82,712,688 195,263 (63,927,480) 18,980,471
85,447,276 - - 85,447,276 71,529,898 - - 71,529,898
- (497,985) (70,250,062) (70,748,047) - - (54,700,435) (54,700,435)
(1,078,699) - - (1,078,699) - - - -
- - (23,421,099) (23,421,098) - - (16,444,505) (16,444,505)
- (211,760) - (211,760) - 518,664 - 518,664
(1,078,699) (709,745) (93,671,161) (95,459,605) - 518,664 (71,144,940) (70,626,276)
6,173,069 - (6,173,069) - (3,153,716) - 3,163,716 -
90,541,646 (709,745) (99,844,230) (10,012,328) 68,376,182 518,664 (67,991,224) 903,622
(13,474,504) 55 - (13,474,449) 7,677,294 (6) - 7,677,288
(9,588,997) (20,968) 8,958,796 (651,169) (2,245,739) 16,737 (951,201) (3,180,203)
67,478,145 (730,658) (90,885,434) (24,137,947) 73,807,737 535,385 (68,942,425) 5,400,707
(73,011,854) - - (73,011,854) (74,260,850) - - (74,260,850)
8,381,189 - - 8,381,189 7,769,848 - - 7,769,848
- - 61,868,873 61,868,873 - - 45,431,439 45,431,439
(64,630,665) - 61,868,873 (2,761,792) (66,491,002) - 45,431,439 (21,059,563)
92,876,903 - (116,455,027) (23,578,124) 90,029,423 730,658 (87,438,466) 3,321,615
——— | S——————— S——— S——————  SE———T— ——— S—————————
- - - - 90,029,423 730,658 (87,438,466) 3,321,615
92,876,903 - (116,455,027) (23,578,124) - - - -
92,876,903 - (116,455,027) (23,578,124) 90,029,423 730,658 (87.438,466) 3,321,615
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12. INSURANCE CONTRACTS ISSUED AND REINSURANCE CONTRACTS HELD (CONTINUED)

12(b) Insurance contracts issued — Analysis by measurement component

p&C

Opening assets
Opening liabilities
Net opening balance

Changes that relate to future services
Changes in estimates that adjust the CSM

Changes in estimates that result in losses and reversals

of losses on onerous contracts
Contracts initially recognised in the period

Changes that relate to current services
CSM recognised for services provided

Change in risk adjustment for non-financial risk for risk

expired
Experience adjustments

Changes that relate to past services

Adjustments to liabilities for incurred claims

Insurance service result

Net finance expenses from insurance contracts issued

Effect of movements in exchange rates

Total changes in statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income

Total cash flows

Net closing balance

Closing assets
Closing liabilities

Net closing balance

2024 2023
Risk
Present value adjustment for
of future cash non-financial Contractual Present value of Risk adjustment for Contractual

flows risk service margin Total future cash flows non-financial risk service margin Total
uss Uss uss uss Ussg uss Uss Ussg
(126,850,942) (998,325) (4,101,202) (131,950,469) (175,945,454) (1,138,839) (6,013,944) (183,098,237)
(126,850,942) (998,325) (4,101,202) (131,950,469) (175,945,454) (1,138,839) (6,013,944) (183,098,237)

(1,022,016) (84,759) 1,106,775 - 786,632 (18,038) (768,594) -

26,500 (26,500) - - - - - -
2,479,448 (413,283) (2,066,165) - 1,711,182 (306,229) (1,416,799) (11,846)

- - 2,520,767 2,520,767 - - 1,560,334 1,560,334

- (800,958) - (800,958) - 528,029 - 528,029

(12,453,280) - - (12,453,280) (34,072,799) - - (34,072,799)

18,801,261 - - 18,801,261 54,227,464 - - 54,227 464

7,831,913 (1,325,500) 1,561,377 8,067,790 22,652,479 203,762 (625,059) 22,231,182
(1,367,189) (56,089) (181,556) (1,604,834) (4,009,421) (85,366) (181,936) (4,276,723)

1,745,447 8,171 16,278 1,769,896 3,579,265 22,118 2,719,737 6,321,120

8,210,171 (1,373,418) 1,396,099 8,232,852 22,222,323 140,514 1,812,742 24,275,579

9,073,997 - - 9,073,997 26,872,189 - - 26,872,189
(109,566,774) (2,371,743) (2,705,103) (114,643,620) (126,850,942) (998,325) (4,101,202) (131,950,469)

— —— S——— WS SRSTWSSSIUIS | SSSS———— e
(109,566,774) (2,371,743) (2,705,103) (114,643,620) (126,850,942) (998,325) (4,101,202) (131,950,469)
(109,566,774) (2,371,743) (2,705,103) (114,643,620) (126,850,942) (998,325) (4,101,202) (131,950,469)
——— ———————  E—————————SSv——
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12. INSURANCE CONTRACTS ISSUED AND REINSURANCE CONTRACTS HELD (CONTINUED)

12(b)

L&H

Opening assets
Opening liabilities
Net opening balance

Changes that relate to future services
Changes in estimates that adjust the CSM

Changes in estimates that result in losses and reversals

of losses on onerous contracts
Contracts initially recognised in the period

Changes that relate to current services
CSM recognised for services provided

Change in risk adjustment for non-financial risk for risk

expired
Experience adjustments

Changes that relate to past services

Adjustments to liabilities for incurred claims

Insurance service resuit

Net finance (expenses) income from insurance contracts

issued
Effect of movements in exchange rates

Total changes in statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income

Total cash flows

Net closing balance

Closing assets
Closing liabilities

Net closing balance

Insurance contracts issued — Analysis by measurement component (Continued)

2024 2023
’ Risk
Present value adjustment for
of future cash non-financial Contractual Present value of Risk adjustment for Contractual

flows risk service margin Total future cash flows non-financial risk service margin Total

Uss uss uss uss$ Uss Us$ Us$ Us$

217,043,414 (67,391,321) (146,330,478) 3,321,615 184,785,716 (18,416,049) (147,389,196) 18,980,471
217,043,414 (67,391,321) (146,330,478) 3,321,615 184,785,716 (18,416,049) (147,389,196) 18,980,471

177,233,528 (95,146,038) (82,087,490) - 55,238,587 (59,103,757) 3,865,170 -

- - - - 685,609 65,009 - 750,618

31,548,784 (12,591,242) (18,957,542) - 11,015,212 (21,131) (11,034,615) (40,534)

- - 8,064,859 8,064,859 - - 7,794,120 7,794,120

- 3,289,062 - 3,289,062 - 1,274,018 - 1,274,018

2,054,849 - - 2,054,849 7,569,905 - - 7,569,905
(23,421,089) - - (23,421,099) (16,444,505) - - (16,444,505)

187,416,062 (104,448,218) (92,980,173) (10,012,329) 58,064,808 (57,785,861) 624,675 903,622

(22,988,950) 17,034,510 (7,520,009) (13,474,449) 2,119,398 8,688,767 (3,130,877) 7,677,288
(2,696,260) 1,205,964 839,127 (651,169) (6,866,945) 121,822 3,564,920 (3,180,203)

161,730,852 (86,207,744) (99,661,055) (24,137,947) 53,317,261 (48,975,272) 1,058,718 5,400,707
(2,761,792) - - (2,761,792) (21,059,563) - - (21,059,563)

376,012,474 (153,599,065) (245,991,533) (23,578,124) 217,043,414 (67,391,321) (146,330,478) 3,321,615

———— | E——————— | S——————— S S————

- - - - 217,043,414 (67,391,321) (146,330,478) 3,321,615

376,012,474 (153,599,065) (245,991,533) (23,578,124) - - - -

376,012,474 (153,599,065) (245,991,533) (23,578,124) 217,043,414 (67,391,321) (146,330,478) 3,321,615

———— ———  ————————— ——————— ————— p———————
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12. INSURANCE CONTRACTS ISSUED AND REINSURANCE CONTRACTS HELD (CONTINUED)

12(c) Reinsurance contracts held — Analysis by remaining coverage and incurred claims

2024 2023
Asset for remaining coverage Asset for remaining coverage
Excluding
loss-recovery Loss-recovery Assets for Excluding loss- Loss-recovery Assets for incurred
component component incurred claims Total recovery component component claims Total
uss uUs$ uUss Uss Uss$ Uss Us$ Uss
P&C
Opening assets 2,401,138 - 60,220,554 62,621,692 359,443 - 76,856,374 77,215,817
Opening liabilities - - - - - - - -
Net opening balance 2,401,138 - 60,220,554 62,621,692 359,443 - 76,856,374 77,215,817
Reinsurance expenses (14,566,717) - - (14,566,717) (9,226,177) - - (9,226,177)
Amount recoverable from reinsurers
Recoveries of incurred claims and other insurance service
expenses - (20,032) 8,968,049 8,948,017 - - 1,738,120 1,738,120
Adjustments to assets for incurred claims - - (2,408,902) (2,408,902) - - (29,189,458) (29,189,458)
- (20,032) 6,559,147 6,539,115 - - (27,451,338) (27,451,338)
Net (expenses) income from reinsurance contracts
held (14,566,717) (20,032) 6,559,147 (8,027,602) (9,226,177) - (27,451,338) (36,677,515)
Net finance (expenses) income from reinsurance contracts
heid (905,438) - 202,869 (702,569) 898,189 - (73,725) 824,464
Effect of movements in exchange rates 54,367 152 (1,120,372) (1,065,853) 1,299,978 - (5,701,273) (4,401,295)
Total changes in statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income (15,417,788) (19,880) 5,641,644 {9,796,024) (7,028,010) - (33,226,336) (40,254,346)
Cash flows
Ceded premiums paid 13,627,260 - 13,627,260 9,069,705 - - 9,069,705
Amounts (received from) paid to reinsurers - - {18,314,491) (18,314,491) - - 16,590,516 16,590,516
Total cash flows 13,627,260 - (18,314,491) (4,687,231) 9,069,705 - 16,590,516 25,660,221
. 610,610 (19,880) 47,547,707 48,138,437 2,401,138 - 60,220,554 62,621,692
Net closing balance ————— E——— S———————, S ———— A ——C M ——S——— S T
Closing assets 610,610 (19,880) 47,547,707 48,138,437 2,401,138 - 60,220,554 62,621,692
Closing liabilities - - - - - - - -
. 610,610 (19,880) 47,547,707 48,138,437 2,401,138 - 60,220,554 62,621,692
Net closing balance ———m E—— —————— S ——————— S —— ———— S ———————
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12.

12(c)

INSURANCE CONTRACTS ISSUED AND REINSURANCE CONTRACTS HELD (CONTINUED)

Reinsurance contracts held — Analysis by remaining coverage and incurred claims (Continued)

L&H

Opening assets
Opening liabilities
Net opening balance

Reinsurance expenses

Amount recoverable from reinsurers

Recoveries of incurred claims and other insurance service
expenses

Recoveries and reversals of recoveries of losses on
onerous underlying contracts

Adjustments to assets for incurred claims

Net income (expenses) from reinsurance contracts
held

Net finance income from reinsurance contracts held

Effect of movements in exchange rates

Total changes in statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income

Cash flows

Ceded premiums paid
Amounts received from reinsurers

Total cash flows

Net closing balance

Closing assets
Closing liabilities

Net closing balance

2024 2023
Asset for remaining coverage Asset for remaining coverage
Excluding
loss-recovery Loss-recovery Assets for Exciuding loss- Loss-recovery Assets for incurred

component component incurred claims Total recovery component component claims Total
uss uss uss Uss Uss Uss Uss Uss
(45,635,142) (8,268) 20,540,468 (25,102,942) (52,370,660) - 14,855,769 (37,514,891)
(45,635,142) (8,268) 20,540,468 (25,102,942) (52,370,660) - 14,855,769 (37.514,891)
(34,517,467) - - (34,517,467) (28,367,220) - - (28,367,220)

- (24) 33,199,710 33,199,686 - (84) 16,921,758 16,921,674
. - - - - (8,352) - (8,352)

- - 8,451,105 8,451,105 - - 10,303,308 10,303,308

- (24) 41,650,815 41,650,791 - (8,436) 27,225,066 27,216,630
(34,517,467) (24) 41,650,815 7,133,324 (28,367,220) (8,436) 27,225,066 (1,150,590)

6,963,727 - - 6,963,727 1,168,429 - - 1,168,429
913,879 324 (230,104) 684,099 4,195,692 168 (4,618,609) (422,749)
(26,639,861) 300 41,420,711 14,781,150 (23,003,099) (8,268) 22,606,457 (404,910)

32,689,247 - - 32,689,247 29,738,617 - - 29,738,617
- {29,777,827) (29,777,827) - - (16,921,758) (16,921,758)

32,689,247 - (29,777,827) 2,911,420 29,738,617 - (16,921,758) 12,816,858
(39,585,756) (7,968) 32,183,352 (7,410,372) (45,635,142) (8,268) 20,540,468 (25,102,942)

——— E—————— ——————
(39,585,756) (7,968) 32,183,352 (7,410,372) (45,635,142) (8,268) 20,540,468 (25,102,942)
32,183,352 (7,410,372) (45,635,142) (8,268) 20,540,468 (25,102,842)
——————————

(39,585,756) (7,968)
——mr———— p————
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12.
12(d)

INSURANCE CONTRACTS ISSUED AND REINSURANCE CONTRACTS HELD (CONTINUED)

Reinsurance contracts held — Analysis by measurement component

paC

Opening assets
Opening liabilities
Net opening balance

Changes that relate to future services
Changes in estimates that adjust the CSM
Contracts initially recognised in the period

Changes that relate fo current services
CSM recognised for services received
Change in risk adjustment for non-financial risk for risk

expired
Experience adjustments

Changes that relate to past services

Net (expenses) income from reinsurance contracts

held

Net finance (expenses) income from reinsurance contracts
held

Effect of movements in exchange rates

Total changes in statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income

Total cash flows

Net Closing balance

Closing assets
Closing liabilities

Net Closing balance

2024 2023
Risk
Present value adjustment for
of future cash non-financial Contractual Present value of Risk adjustment for Contractual
flows risk service margin Total future cash flows non-financial risk service margin Total
Uss uss uss uss USsS$ uss Us$ Uss
55,435,152 1,968,318 5,218,222 62,621,692 76,091,128 325,388 799,301 77,215,817
55,435,152 1,968,318 5,218,222 62,621,692 76,091,128 325,388 799,301 77,215,817
548,047 (1,145,641) 597,594 - 514,312 (248,058) (266,254) -
6,479,184 - (6,479,184) - (7,680,705) 2,175,207 5,505,498 -
- - 626,778 626,778 - - (895,630) (895,630)
- 89,315 - 89,315 - (159,537) - (159,537)
(6,334,793) - - (6,334,793) (6,432,890) - - (6,432,890)
(2,408,902) - - (2,408,902) (29,189,458) - - (29,189,458)
(1,716,464) (1,056,326) (5,254,812) (8,027,602) (42,788,741) 1,767,612 4,343,614 (36,677,515)
(509,711} 38,530 (231,388) (702,569) 943,246 (225,519) 106,737 824,464
(1,049,999) (6,474) (9,380) (1,065,853) (4,470,702) 100,837 (31,430) (4,401,295)
(3,276,174) (1,024,270) (5,495,580) (9,796,024) (46,316,197) 1,642,930 4,418,921 (40,254,346)
(4,687,231) - - (4,687,231) 25,660,221 - - 25,660,221
47,471,747 944,048 (277,358) 48,138,437 55,435,152 1,968,318 5,218,222 62,621,692
——— S—— | —————— T W——CTT | SESSUI——— ESMMm—————
47,471,747 944,048 (277,358) 48,138,437 55,435,152 1,968,318 5,218,222 62,621,692
47,471,747 944,048 (277,358) 48,138,437 55,435,152 1,968,318 5,218,222 62,621,692
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12.

12(d)

INSURANCE CONTRACTS ISSUED AND REINSURANCE CONTRACTS HELD (CONTINUED)

Reinsurance contracts held — Analysis by measurement component (Continued)

L&H

Opening assets
Opening liabilities
Net opening balance

Changes that relate to future services
Changes in estimates that adjust the CSM
Contracts intially recognised in the period

Changes that relate to current services
CSM recognised for services received
Change in risk adjustment for non-financial risk for risk
expired
Experience adjustments

Changes that relate to past services

Net income {expenses) from reinsurance contracts
held

Net finance income (expenses) from reinsurance contracts
held

Effect of movements in exchange rates

Total changes in statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income

Total cash flows

Net Closing balance

Closing assets
Closing liabilities

Net Closing balance

2024 2023
Risk
Present value adjustment for
of future cash non-financial Contractual Present value of Risk adjustment for Contractual
flows risk service margin Total future cash flows non-financial risk service margin Total
uss Uss uUss uss uss Uss Uss Uss
(93,593,143) 23,875,105 44,615,096 (25,102,942) (87,935,802) 1,407,774 49,013,137 (37,514,891)
(93,593,143) 23,875,105 44,615,096 (25,102,942) (87,935,802) 1,407,774 49,013,137 (37,514,891)
(132,555,991) 66,805,691 65,750,300 - (30,258,447) 23,717,111 6,541,336 -
(1,5631,417) - 1,531,417 - (1.242,827) - 1,242,827 -
- - (3,352,208) (3,352,208) - - (6,007,724) (6,007,724)
- (1,242,232) - (1,242,232) - 579,637 - 579,637
3,276,659 - - 3,276,659 (6,025,811) - - (6,025,811)
8,451,105 - - 8,451,105 10,303,308 - - 10,303,308
(122,359,644) 65,563,459 63,929,509 7,133,324 (27,223,777) 24,296,748 1,776,439 (1,150,590)
14,458,232 (11,007,978) 3,513,473 6,963,727 1,635,835 (1,743,225) 1,275,819 1,168,429
1,020,629 (45,519) (291,011) 684,099 7,113,742 (86,192) (7,450,299) (422,749)
(106,880,783) 54,509,962 67,151,971 14,781,150 (18,474,200) 22,467,331 (4,398,041) (404,910)
2,911,420 - - 2,911,420 12,816,859 - - 12,816,859
(197,562,506) 78,385,067 111,767,067 (7,410,372) (93,593,143) 23,875,105 44,615,096 (25,102.942)
——
(197,562,506) 78,385,067 111,767,067 (7,410,372) (93,593,143) 23,875,105 44,615,096 (25,102,942)
(197,562,506) 78,385,067 111,767,067 (7,410,372) (93,593,143) 23,875,105 44,615,096 (25,102,942)
———— ———— P————— S —————
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12. INSURANCE CONTRACTS ISSUED AND REINSURANCE CONTRACTS HELD (CONTINUED)
12(e) Reconciliation of CSM

Insurance contracts issued — P&C
P&C business only applies the full retrospective transition approach, refer to note 12(b) Insurance contracts issued — Analysis by measurement component.

Insurance contracts issued — L&H

2024 2023
Contracts under Contracts under
modified Contracts under modified
retrospective fair value retrospective Contracts under
approach approach Other contracts Total approach  fair value approach Other contracts Total
uss uss uss uss Uss$ Uss Uss Uss
Opening balance (66,235,629) (4,233,740) (75,861,109) (146,330,478) (112,148,849) (5,721,138) (28,519,209) ) (147,389,196)

Changes that relate to future services

Changes in estimates that adjust the CSM 4,272,856 (2,585,707) (83,774,639) (82,087,490) 39,746,816 (1,859,169) (34,022,477) 3,865,170
Contracts initially recognised in the period - - (18,967,542) (18,957,542) - - (11,034,615) (11,034,615)
4,272,856 (2,585,707) (102,732,181) (101,045,032) 39,746,816 (1,859,169) (45,057,092) (7,169,445)
Changes that relate to current services
CSM recognised for services provided 5,390,315 919,819 1,754,725 8,064,859 3,976,140 3,144,511 673,469 7,794,120
Net finance expenses from insurance contracts issued (945,603) (56,807) (6,517,599) (7,520,009) (495,231) (50,171) (2,585,475) (3,130,877)
Effect of movements in exchange rates 692,618 549,232 (402,723) 839,127 2,685,495 252,227 627,198 3,564,920
Closing balance (56,825,443) (5,407,203) (183,758,887) (245,991,533) (66,235,629) (4,233,740) (75,861,109) (146,330,478)
L ———————— S ———————— ————————————  S————— S ———————— S ————

Reinsurance contracts held — P&C

P&C reinsurance contracts held only applies the full retrospective transition approach, refer to note 12(d) Reinsurance contracts held — Analysis by measurement
component.

Reinsurance contracts held — L&H

L&H reinsurance contracts held only applies the fair value transition approach, refer to note 12(d) Reinsurance contracts held — Analysis by measurement
component.
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12,

12(f)

12(g)

INSURANCE CONTRACTS ISSUED AND REINSURANCE CONTRACTS HELD (CONTINUED)
Reconciliation of insurance revenue

Insurance contracts issued — P&C

P&C business only applies the full retrospective transition approach, refer to note 12(a) Insurance
contracts issued — Analysis by remaining coverage and incurred claims,

Insurance contracts issued — L&H

2024 2023
Us$ Us$

Contracts under modified retrospective
approach 41,463,415 39,066,710
Contracts under fair value approach 9,398,828 7,656,548
Other contracts 34,585,033 24,806,640
85,447,276 71,529,898

Expected recognition of CSM in profit or loss

The following table sets out when the Company expects to recognise the remaining CSM in profit or
loss after the reporting date.

P&C
More than
1-2 years 3-6 years 6-10 years 10 years Total
Uss Uss$ Uss Uss$ Uss$

Year ended 31 December 2024
Insurance contracts issued (1,939,684) (652,556) (112,863) - (2,705,103)
Reinsurance contracts held (477,110) 166,552 33,200 (277,358)

(2,416,794) (486,004) (79,663) - (2,982,461)
Year ended 31 December 2023
Insurance contracts issued (2,512,483) (1,327,644) (261,075) - (4,101,202)
Reinsurance contracts held 4,761,497 362,397 94,328 - 5,218,222

2,249,014 (965,247) (166,747) - 1,117,020
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12, INSURANCE CONTRACTS ISSUED AND REINSURANCE CONTRACTS HELD (CONTINUED)

12(g) Expected recognition of CSM in profit or loss (Continued)

L&H
More than
1-2 years 3-6 years 6-10 years 10 years Total
Uss$ Us$ uss$ Us$ Uss$
Year ended 31 December 2024
Insurance contracts issued (18,962,187)  (25,041,417) (34,228,538) (167,769,391) (245,991,533)
Reinsurance contracts held 10,481,964 13,950,321 17,379,890 69,954,892 111,767,067

(8,480,223)  (11,091,096)  (16,848,648)  (97,804,499) (134,224,466)

Year ended 31 December 2023
Insurance contracts issued (11,279,842)  (14,896,133) (20,361,182)  (99,793,321) (146,330,478)
Reinsurance contracts held 4,184,183 5,568,679 6,937,692 27,924,542 44,615,096

(7,095,659) (9,327,454)  (13,423,490) (71,868,779) (101,715,382)
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12. INSURANCE CONTRACTS ISSUED AND REINSURANCE CONTRACTS HELD (CONTINUED)
12(h) Claims Development — P&C reinsurance business
The table provides P&C claims development information per underwriting year and reporting period.
To permit an analysis of claims development excluding the impact of foreign exchange rate

movements, all figures are translated into USD at the prevailing rates as at the reporting date.

Gross P&C claims at the end of each year of development

Underwriting year 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

uss uss uss uss uss Uss$ uss uss
2017 and prior 2,205606,909 2,233,558,183  2,242,000,741  2,235785928  2,228,433420 2,215394,396  2216,561,644  2,214,854,324
2018 - 474494479  518007,028  534.477,893 533,303,712 528,928,921 513,631,332 511,449,904
2019 - - 729204380 732,669,342 695,754,346 663,997,451 652,576,264 643,343,008
2020 - - - 198,403,002 200,148,911 196,173.478 196,947,494 205,990,389
2021 A - . - 19,314,845 38,497,105 40,757,991 44,814,531
2022 - - - - . 46,964,209 52,605,251 52,661,749
2023 - - - - - - 14,132,705 20,895,110
2024 - - - - - - - 14,671,867

Cumulative gross

claims 2,225,606,909  2,708,052,662  3,489,302,129  3,701,336,165 3,676,955,043  3,689,955650  3,687,212,681 3,708,780,972

Cumulative gross

payments (2,0563,603,313) (2,089,860,849) (2,574,079,701) (3,132,529,563)  (3,423,003,850) (3,474,680,837) (3,533,860,897) (3,567,078,439)

Total reinsurance

liabilities for Non-life

(including P&C and

heaith reinsurance

business) 171,913,596 618,191,813 915,222,428 568,806,612 253,951,193 215,274,813 153,351,784 141,702,533
Liabilities related to

health reinsurance

business (20,159,421)
Funds withheld (2,203,790)
Effect of discounting (8,754,501)

Risk adjustment for

non-financial risk 2,147,364

Gross liabilities for

incurred claims for .
112,732,185
P&C
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12. INSURANCE CONTRACTS ISSUED AND REINSURANCE CONTRACTS HELD (CONTINUED)

12(i) Discount rates

The table below shows the discount rates after application of the illiquidity premium by liquidity bucket
and currency:

2024 2023
Maturity (years) 1 5 10 15 20 30 1 5 10 15 20 30
Wiguid bucket
Currency
AUD 4.31% 4.47% 4.62% 4.71% 477% 484% 4.53% 442% 4.45% 450% 4.55% 4.61%
CNY 1.55% 2.02% 230% 245% 253% 261% 269% 3.03% 3.24% 3.36% 3.42% 3.49%
JPY 1.18% 1.32% 1.67% 1.98% 222% 2.52% 06%% 1.11% 1.50% 1.76% 1.94% 2.15%
TWD 2,03% 211% 2.20% 2.26% 231% 235% 169% 1.80% 1.96% 2.08% 216% 2.25%
usD 4.55% 4.71% 4.66% 4.55% 4.43% 4.26% 4.89% 4.35% 4.03% 387% 3.79% 3.72%
Medium-itliquid bucket
Currency
AUD 4.02% 4.19% 433% 443% 44%% 4.56% 4.21% 411% 414% 419% 4.24% 4.29%
CNY 1.26% 1.73% 2.02% 216% 2.25% 233% 237% 271% 293% 3.05% 3.11% 3.18%
JPY 0.90% 1.04% 1.39% 1.70% 1.94% 2.23% 0.37% 080% 1.19% 1.45% 163% 1.83%
TWD 1.74% 1.83% 1.92% 1.98% 2.02% 2.07% 1.37% 1.49% 166% 1.76% 1.85% 1.94%
usb 4.27% 4.42% 4.38% 4.26% 4.15% 3.98% 4.58% 4.04% 3.71% 3.56% 3.48% 3.40%
Liquid bucket
Currency
AUD 3.74% 3.90% 4.05% 4.14% 4.20% 4.27% 3.90% 3.80% 3.82% 3.88% 3.92% 3.98%
CNY 0.98% 1.45% 1.74% 1.88% 1.96% 205% 2.06% 240% 262% 273% 280% 2.87%
JPY 0.61% 0.76% 1.11% 1.42% 1.65% 1.95% 0.06% 048% 0.87% 1.14% 1.31% 1.52%
TWD 1.46% 1.54% 163% 1.70% 1.74% 1.78% 1.06% 1.18% 1.33% 1.45% 1.53% 1.62%
usb 3.99% 4.14% 4.09% 3.98% 3.86% 3.70% 4.26% 3.73% 3.40% 3.24% 3.16% 3.08%
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13.

14.

DEFERRED TAXATION

The movement for the year in the Company’s net deferred tax assets (liabilities) was as follows:

2024 2023
Uss Us$
At 1 January (836,929) (2,023,538)
Credit to profit or loss 908,045 1,545,437
Credit (Charge) to other comprehensive income 463,405 (358,828)
At 31 December 534,521 (836,929)

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period represent the
following:

Assets Liabilities
2024 2023 2024 2023
Us$ Uss$ Uss Us$
Tax losses 472,382 1,426,000 - -
Timing difference in the recognition of insurance
service result, finance income and expenses
from insurance contracts issued and
reinsurance contracts held, including one-off
tax impact from the implementation of RBC
regime 12,458,020 - (12,395,881) (2,262,929)
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) 12,930,402 1,426,000 (12,395,881) (2,262,929)

On 14 July 2023, the Insurance (Amendment) Bill 2023 was gazette, introducing the RBC regime for
insurers of Hong Kong under the Insurance Ordinance and amending the Inland Revenue Ordinance
to allow spreading the one-off increase in assessable profits resulting from the implementation of the
RBC regime over five consecutive years.

The Company has elected to spread the one-off increase in assessable profits resulting from the
implementation of the RBC regime over five years of assessment, commencing from the current
reporting period. Accordingly, deferred tax assets of US$15,494,852 and deferred tax liabilities of
US$12,395,881 were recognised as at 31 December 2024,

SHARE CAPITAL

2024 2023
No. of shares US$ No. of shares Us$
Issued and fully paid:
At beginning of the year and at end of
the reporting period 99,157 27,556,492 99,157 27,556,492
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15.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND GENERAL SHARE AWARD PLAN OF THE ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY

Share option schemes

The Company’s uitimate holding company operates several share option schemes (the “Share Option
Schemes”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute

to the success of the Group’s operations. The eligible participants are directors and key officers of the
Company only.

Details of the share options granted to directors and employees in respect of their services to the
Company under the Share Option Schemes are as follows:

Number of share options

Exercise

At 1 Granted Exercised Lapsed At 31 price of
January during the during the during the December Exercise period of share
Date of grant 2024 year year year 2024 share options options#
Euro
16 March 2027 to
16 March 2023 20,000 - - (10,000) 10,000

I S TS ST N——— 15 March 2033 22.83

# The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar
changes in the ultimate holding company’s share capital.

The fair value of the share options granted to directors and employees in respect of their services to

the Company by the Company’s ultimate holding company during the year was US$Nil (2023:
US$21,768).

Expense in relation to share-based payment transactions under the Share Option Schemes

recognised in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year was US$6,895
(2023: US$NiIl).

General share award plan

The Company's ultimate holding company also has a general share award plan (the “General Share
Award Plan”) to reward eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Company’s operation.
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15.  SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND GENERAL SHARE AWARD PLAN OF THE ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

General share award plan (Continued)

Details of the shares granted to directors and employees in respect of their services to the Company
under the General Share Award Plan are as follows:

Number of share awards

Transferred
Granted/ Lapsed/ to Market
At Transfer in Forfeited participants At Date of price at
1 January during the during during the 31 December transfer of grant
Date of grant 2024 year the year year 2024 ownership* date
Euro
22 December 2018
(Long Term 23 December
Incentive Plan) 3,426 (855) (2,571) 2024 37.88
5 November 2020
(Long Term 6 November
Incentive Plan) 600 600 2026 22,86
2 November
1 November 2021 21,800 (11,700) (10,200) 2024 28.95
1 November 2021
(Long Term 2 November
Incentive Plan) 7,139 7,139 2027 28,95
1 March 2022 1,580 1,580 2 March 2025 28.47
10 November
9 November 2022 37,400 37,400 2025 17.04
9 November 2022
(Long Term 10 November
Incentive Plan) 4,090 4,090 2028 17.04
10 November
9 November 2023 31,170 31,170 2026 28.01
21 May 2024 27,175 27,175 21 May 2027 27.34
107,305 27,175 (12,565) (12,771) 109,154
* The ownership of the shares would be transferred to the participants on these specified dates.

The fair value of the share awards granted to directors and employees in respect of their services to
the Company by the Company’s ultimate holding company during the year was US$779,221 (2023:
US$950,251). Total expense in relation to share-based payment transactions under the General Share
Award Plan recognised in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year
was US$324,859 (2023: US$400,552).

The fair value of equity-settled share awards granted during the year was estimated as at the date of
grant based on the market value at grant date.
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16. CASH USED IN OPERATIONS

2024 2023
Uss Uss$
Profit (Loss) before tax 3,972,652 (7,749,472)
Interest and dividend income (7,218,306) (5,425,039)
Interest expense on lease liabilities 39,031 56,890
Fair value gain on investments at fair value through
profit or loss (10,472,148) (6,143,140)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 60,117 112,103
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 673,869 696,692
(Gain) Loss on disposal of investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income (130,079) 53,428
Gain on disposal of investments at fair value through
profit or loss (120,464) (5,149,404)
Share-based payment (55,221) 71,984
Changes in working capital:
Decrease (Increase) in amount due from ultimate
holding company 811,676 (167,954)
(Increase) Decrease in amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries (2,178,935) 343,707
Decrease (Increase) in deposits and other
receivables 788,828 (1,673,187)
(Decrease) Increase in amount due to ultimate
holding company (996,143) 740,311
Increase in amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 176,993 1,448,301
(Decrease) Increase in other payables and accrued :
liabilities (1,155,730) 1,462,302
Change in derivative financial instruments ~
transactions not qualifying as hedges (649,401) (49,623)
Change in insurance contracts issued (10,349,794) (29,045,747)
Change in reinsurance contracts held 3,896,710 11,395,676

Cash used in operations

(22,906,345) (39,022,172)

Page 65 of 80



SCOR Reinsurance Company (Asia) Limited .

Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2024

17. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Details of the changes in the Company’s liabilities from financing activities are as foliows:

Lease liabilities

2024 2023
Uss$ Us$
At beginning of the year 1,424,765 88,264
Net cash flows
Repayment (706,334) (741,994)
Non-cash transactions
New lease - 2,021,605
Interest expenses , 39,031 56,890
At end of the year 757,462 1,424,765

18. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company had the following transactions with related parties during the year in addition to those
disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements:

2024 2023

Notes uUss Uss$

Premiums ceded to ultimate holding company (a), (9) 40,630,267 18,404,904
Premiums ceded to a fellow subsidiary (a), (9) 30,205,622 30,203,639
Claims recovered from ultimate holding company (a), (9) 35,959,553 19,055,029
Claims recovered from a fellow subsidiary (a), (g) 13,251,938 14,100,939
Commission income received from ultimate holding company (a), (g) 4,525,575 1,296,902
Commission income received from a fellow subsidiary (a), (9) 7,953,812 8,140,174
Interest on funds withheld to ultimate holding company (a), (g) 300,910 660,808
Management fee paid to ultimate holding company (b) 4,358,254 4,160,706
Management fee paid to fellow subsidiaries (b) 9,014,067 8,459,369
Management fee received from ultimate holding company (c) 2,109,572 2,647,361
Management fee received from fellow subsidiaries (c) 2,755,257 2,056,886
Parental guarantee fee paid to ultimate holding company (d) 97,002 133,790
Loan interest income from a fellow subsidiary (e) 1,733,417 424,270
Loan facility fee paid to ultimate holding company () 43,742 122,941
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18.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a) The directors of the Company considered that the premiums ceded, claims recovered,
commission income, and interest on funds withheld with the ultimate holding company and a
fellow subsidiary were determined according to prices and terms similar to those offered to
unrelated customers of the Company.

(b) The management fees arose from administrative or/and investment services provided by the
ultimate holding company and fellow subsidiaries to the Company. The fees were based on
the cost incurred plus 5% or 7% by the fellow subsidiaries and cost incurred plus markup by
the ultimate holding company. The terms were agreed between the Company and its
counterparties.

(c) The management fees arose from administrative services provided by the Company to
several branches of ultimate holding company and fellow subsidiaries, The fees were based

on the cost incurred plus 7% by the Company. The terms were agreed between the Company
and its counterparties.

(d) The parental guarantee fee arose from the ultimate holding company guaranteeing the
payables under insurance and reinsurance contracts issued by the Company. The fee was
based on 0.1% of total contract liabilities less net shareholders’ equity of prior year. The terms
were agreed between the Company and its counterparty.

(e) The loan interest received arose from a loan to a fellow subsidiary, which is bearing interest
at fixed rate of 5.5% (2023: fixed rates ranging 1.2% to 5.5%).

) The loan facility fee relates to short term loan facility provided by the ultimate holding company,
which was determined at an arm’s length basis. On 1 October 2020, the Company entered
into a short term facility framework agreement with the ultimate holding company, pursuant to
which the ultimate holding company shall provide group facility to the Company with a total
amount of not more than EUR100,000,000, which will be terminated, as extended, on 30
June 2026.

(9) These transactions are not directly recognised in the financial statements; instead, these
amounts form part of the fulfiiment cash flows under GMM of HKFRS 17. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, they were disclosed on the basis that they provide additional
financial information to the users of the financial statements.

Details of compensation for key management personnel, who are the directors of the Company, and
post-employment benefits of the Company are included in note 22 to the financial statements.
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19. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company’s principal financial instruments comprise investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, investments at fair vaiue through profit or loss, cash and bank balances,

deposits, other receivables and payables and derivative financial instruments,

The following table sets out the financial instruments by category.

Financial assets

Fair value through other comprehensive income

- investments
Amortised cost

- deposits and other receivables

- loan to a fellow subsidiary

- due from group companies

- cash and bank balances
Fair value through profit or loss

- investments

- derivative financial instruments

Financial liabilities

Fair value through profit or loss

- derivative financial instruments

Amortised cost
- lease liabhilities

- due to group companies

- other payables and accrued liabilities

2024
Uss

123,993,912

3,127,641
31,000,000
3,000,181
14,068,664

108,315,328
145,788

756,450

757,462
6,364,913
2,536,701

2023
Us$

140,116,444

3,916,469
31,000,000
1,632,922
8,114,539

103,844,325
455,596

1,716,659

1,424,765
7,184,063
3,692,431
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SCOR Reinsurance Company (Asia) Limited

Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2024

19.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting period to a reasonably
possible change in the exchange rates of the major currencies identified in the above table, with all
other variables held constant, of the Company’s net profit before tax (2023: loss before tax) (due to
changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities as at that date). The Company considers
the change in exchange rate of USD against HKD would be minimal as long as HKD remains pegged
to the USD, and the change in the exchange rate of USD against HKD is excluded in the sensitivity
analysis.

2024 2023
Major currency (5) (203,000) (5) (2,715,000)
Major currency 5 290,000 5 2,720,000
JPY (5) 42,000 (5)  (1,111,000)
JPY 5 (17,000) 5 1,095,000
TWD (5) (79,000) (6)  (1,178,000)
TWD 5 106,000 5 1,171,000
CNY (5) 16,000 (5) (20,000)
CNY 5 (22,000) 5 13,000
AUD (5) 6,000 (5) (65,000)
AUD 5 35,000 5 100,000

Interest rate risk

The Company adopts an approach of focusing on achieving a desired overall interest profile, which
may change over time, based on management’s view of interest rates and economic conditions.

The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to cash flow interest rate risk due to the
fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate on term deposit balances. The directors consider the
Company’s exposure of the short-term bank deposits to interest rate risk is not significant as interest
bearing bank balances are within short maturity periods.

Investments duration is medium term, relating to liability durations. Investments are made, in general,
over the medium term and are based on a policy of matching asset and liability durations. As a result,
portfolio turnover is rather moderate thus assuring a relatively stable duration of the portfolio and a
rapid assessment of interest rate risk.

An estimate of the impact arising from investments on the future profit or loss and other
comprehensive income following a change of interest rate is not included as the Company’s active
investment management includes measures to partially mitigate such changes depending on factors
such as the part of the yield curve affected, levels of cash and maturity reinvestment, the change on
inflation expectations, the effectiveness of hedging instruments, etc.

Page 70 of 80



SCOR Reinsurance Company (Asia) Limited

Notes to Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2024

19.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The investments at fair value through other comprehensive income are debt securities, such that the
principal and interest will be fully recovered and fluctuations in fair value arising from interest rate
changes are temporary in nature. The directors consider that the credit risk exposure in relation to its
holding of fixed-interest securities is of greater significance to the Company.

Equity price risk

The Company is exposed to market risk in respect of its holding in unit trusts.

As at 31 December 2024, based on the fair value of those holdings as at 31 December 2024, a
reduction or increase of 5% (2023: 5%) in the fair value would result in a reduction or increase in the
Company'’s net profit of US$5,416,000 (2023: an increase or reduction in the Company’s net loss of

US$5,192,000) due to change in the fair value of investments at fair value through profit or loss.

The Company’s investment strategy is integrated into that of the SCOR SE Group and market risk is
monitored at the Group level.

Liquidity risk

The board of directors manages this risk by monitoring periodically the actual and projected cash
flows, ensuring that a reasonable amount of investments is kept in liquid assets to meet cash flow
needs.

The Company finances its operations and investment activities with internally generated cash flows.
The maturity profiles of the financial assets of the Company as at the end of the reporting period,

based on original maturity and the maturity profiles of the financial liabilities of the Company as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments are analysed as below.
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19. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

2024
Up to a year/
On demand 2to 3 years 4 to 6 years Over 5 years Total
us$ ‘ us$ us$ uss uss
Financial assets

Debt securities 33,608,358 19,439,955 8,643,877 62,301,722 123,993,912
Deposits and other receivables 2,908,080 219,561 - - 3,127,641
Due from group companies 34,000,181 - - - 34,000,181
Derivative financial instruments 145,788 - - - 145,788
Cash and bank balances 14,068,664 - - - 14,068,664

84,731,071 19,659,516 8,643,877 62,301,722 175,336,186

Financial liabilities

Derivative financial instruments (756,450) - - - (756,450)
Due to group companies (6,364,913) - - - (6,364,913)
Lease liabilities (712,104) {69,342} - - (771,446)
Other payables (2,536,701) - - - (2,536,701)
(10,370,168) (59,342) - - (10,429,510}
2023
Up to a year/
On demand 2 to 3 years 4 to 5 years Over 5 years Total
Us$ Uss$ Us$ Us$ Us$
Financial assets
Debt securities 34,088,522 61,299,856 14,340,153 30,387,913 140,116,444
Deposits and other receivables 3,916,469 - - - 3,916,469
Due from group companies 1,632,922 31,000,000 - - 32,632,922
Derivative financial instruments 455,696 - - - 455,596
Cash and bank balances 8,114,539 - - - 8,114,639
48,208,048 92,299,856 14,340,153 30,387,913 185,235,970
Financial liabilities

Derivative financial instruments (1,715,659) - - - (1,715,659)
Due to group companies (7,184,083) - - - (7,184,083)
Lease liabilities (709,292) (778,400) - - (1,487,692)
Other payables (3,692,431) - - - (3,692,431)
(13,301,465) (778,400) - - (14,079,865)
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19. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (Continued)
The following tables provide a maturity analysis of the Company's insurance and reinsurance

contracts, which reflects the dates on which the cash flows are expected to occur. The Company has
elected to analyse the remaining contractual undiscounted net cash flows.

2024
More than
1 year or less 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years 5 years Total
uss uUss Uss uss Uss uss Uss
P&C
Insurance contracts issued 5,916,574 (868,440) (1,033,631) (624,412} (894,179) (1,876,297) 619,615
Relnsurance contracts held (4,269,431) 131,666 2,242,195 771,586 533,001 1,696,226 1,104,233
1,647,143 (736,784) 1,208,564 147,174 (361,178) (181,071) 1,723,848
— S | S M——  S——— ——— e —
L&H
Insurance contracts issued 45,358,677 27,581,291 23,416,302 25,295,894 24,603,617 840,441,535 986,697,316
Reinsurance contracts held (21,468,855) (16,266,530) {14,819,446) (14,248,782) (13,639,639)  (330,691,131)  (411,034,383)
23,889,822 11,314,761 8,596,856 11,047,112 11,063,978 509,750,404 575,662,933
—— W—————— W S—————— V—— M—————— —————————
2023
More than
1 year or less 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years 5 years Total
Us$ Uss$ Us$ Uss$ uss$ Usg Uss
P&C
Insurance contracts issued 5,908,565 (406,239) (827,820) 39,635 (607,018) (2,260,912) 1,846,211
Reinsurance contracts held (22,504,225) (9,5627,897) 6,367,977 3,387,999 87,397 13,566,799 (8,621,950)
(16,595,660) (9,934,136) 5,540,157 3,427,634 (519,621) 11,305,887 (6,775,739)
S————— —————— SS———S———— S————————— N—————— VS S————————
L&H
Insurance contracts issued 17,755,089 18,233,661 16,691,024 16,294,356 14,600,678 353,799,168 435,373,976
Reinsurance contracts held (10,264,663) (9,049,598) (8,293,340) (7,797,983) (7,153,649) (91,260,410)  (133,819,643)
7,490,426 9,184,083 7,397,684 7,496,373 7,447,029 262,538,758 301,554,333
S SIS W S RS | M——— —————————
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its obligation and
cause the other party to incur a financial loss.

The carrying amounts of investments (except for investments at fair value through profit or loss and
derivative financial instruments), reinsurance and other receivables, amounts due from group
companies and cash and cash equivalents, which are net of impairment losses, represent the

Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk. No other financial assets carry a significant exposure to
credit risk.

For investments, the Company has the investment guideline in place to ensure the investments
purchased are of good investment grade.

Under most of its Life reinsurance contracts, the Company expects to receive premiums from its
cedents over several years. These often exceed expected future payments for claims, commissions
and so on, meaning that the Company expects to receive positive future cash flows. The Company
monitors the development of its cedents’ financial situation through regular contact, which enables the
Company to take appropriate action when deemed necessary.

There was no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the year.
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19.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Credit risk (Continued)

Deposits and other receivables / Amounts due from gqroup companies

The management of the Company considers its deposits and other receivables as well as amounts due
from group companies are subject to low credit risk and the ECL of these balances is insignificant after
taking into account the financial position and credit quality of the counterparties.

Bank balances
The credit risk on bank balances is low as these balances are placed with reputable financial institutions
with credit ratings ranging from A to AA-.

Debt instruments measured at FVOCI
The following table presents the analysis of debt securities by rating agency designation based on
Standard & Poor’s ratings or equivalent.

The table indicates that 90% (2023: 90%) of the assets included in the table are invested in A rated
investments or above,

2024 2023
Uss Us$

Debt securities
-AAA ‘ 27,083,590 47,605,712
- AA- to AA+ 33,318,487 39,665,648
-A-to A+ 51,273,664 43,508,371
- BBB+ or below 12,318,171 9,338,713

123,993,912 140,116,444

In estimating the ECL, the Company has taken into account the historical actual credit loss experience
over the past years since initial recognition and the financial position of the counterparties by reference
to, among others, their management or audited accounts and available press information, adjusted for
general economic conditions and future prospects of the industry in which the counterparties operate and
various external sources of actual and forecast economic information such as information published by
economic expert reports, financial analysts and government bodies in estimating the probability of default
of these financial assets, as well as the loss upon default in each case. The management of the Company
considers the ECL of these financial assets to be insignificant after taking into account the financial
position and credit quality of the counterparties.

As at 31 December 2024, the Company recognised loss allowance of US$396,716 (2023: US$188,949)
on its debt securities in investments at fair value through other comprehensive income. The Company
has no collateral in respect of these debt securities.

Insurance risk

Insurance risk is defined as a risk, other than financial risk, transferred from the holder of a contract to the
issuer. The main risk the Company faces in relation to P&C and L&H businesses is that the actual
amounts of claims and indemnity payments, or the timing thereof, differ from estimates. The frequency of
claims, their severity, the actual payments made, the development of long-tail claims (whether they are
litigated or not), and long-term mortality and morbidity trends as well as external factors are all beyond
the Company's control.
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19.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
P&C Insurance risk

The Company principally accepts inward reinsurance for the property, marine and casualty classes.
These risks vary significantly in relation to the location of the risk insured and the type of risks insured.
The variability of risks is mitigated by diversification of risk of loss to a well spread portfolio of insurance
contracts and geographical areas, as a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across
the board by changes in any subset of the portfolio.

The following table sets out the insurance revenue by line of business.

2024 2023
Uss US$
Engineering 8,286,761 4,979,097
Property 4,740,973 13,225,378
Credit & Surety 700,369 2,373,302
Liability 1,337,236 1,064,090
Others 2,456,105 300,535
Total 17,521,444 21,942 402
The following table sets out the insurance revenue by geographical area.
2024 2023
Uss$ US$
Hong Kong 9,176,872 9,878,776
China 4,071,548 2,564,053
Philippines 1,735,875 841,737
Japan 725,696 1,275,379
Taiwan 760,797 1,217,214
Others 1,050,656 6,165,243
Total 17,521,444 21,942 402

The variability of risks is also improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting
guidelines and strict claim review policies to assess all new and ongoing claims. The Company also
enforces a policy of actively managing and promptly pursuing of claims, in order to reduce its exposure
to unpredictable future developments that can negatively impact the Company.

By the nature of its business, the Company is exposed to catastrophe events of low frequency and
high severity, in particular natural disasters in the Far East region.

In order to limit exposure to catastrophic events, appropriate retrocession arrangements have been
made. The purpose of these arrangements is to limit exposure to catastrophic events to a pre-
determined maximum amount based on the Company’s risk appetite as decided by management.
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19. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
L&H Insurance risk
The main L&H insurance risks which the Company is exposed to are as foliows:
iy Mortality risk

Mortality risk is the risk of loss due to higher than anticipated death experience, usually caused
by higher occurrence of claims, resulting from either a general volatility, an adverse long-term
trend or a mortality shock event.

iiy Morbidity risk

Morbidity risk is the risk of loss due to adverse claims experience from critical iliness or health
treaties resulting from trends of early diagnoses, improvements in medical diagnoses, adverse
long-term trend and/or inflation of medical costs.

At this point of time, the following life insurance risks are not significant to the Company:
iiiy Lapse risk

Lapse risk is the risk of non-payment of premium by the policyholder or the early termination
of the policies. The Company is not exposed to significant lapse risk as most of the reinsurance
rates are charged yearly and are based on attained age.

iv) Longevity risk

Longevity risk is the risk of loss arising when the insured lives longer than expected. This risk
is inherent in long term care products. The Company has not written any annuity covers.

In order to mitigate the volatility of life insurance risks, business writers, actuarial and underwriting
departments will assess the treaty on various aspects ranging from product design, reinsurance model,
anti-selection, medical underwriting process and claims practices before any reinsurance treaty is
accepted. Such rules are defined in the SCOR Global Life Business Guidelines. Any deviations from
these guidelines are referred to SCOR Global Life’s Central Actuarial team for review.

As part of its risk management strategy, the Company monitors the experience of the treaties every
year. If there is deterioration in the experience of the treaty, the Company shall identify the underlying
cause and take the appropriate remedial action. Such actions may include repricing, negotiations with
the client to improve reinsurance terms where possible and/or setup appropriate level of reserves to
provide for future claims liabilities.
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19.

20.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

L&H Insurance risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The table below analyses how the profit or loss and equity would have increased (decreased) if

changes in underwriting risk variables that were reasonably possible at the reporting date had
occurred.

This analysis presents the sensitivities both before and after risk mitigation by reinsurance and
assumes that all other variables remain constant.

Profit or loss Equity
Gross Net Gross Net
UsD UsD UsD uUsb
31 December 2024
Mortality +1% (65,312) (29,985) (397,230) (282,139)
Mortality +29% (490,457) (220,855) (2,934,285) (2,125,134)
31 December 2023
Mortality +1% (84,411) (65,300) (2,192,025) (1,793,590)
Mortality +2% (378,675) (308,243) (1,771,078) (1,611,465)

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to safeguard the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain positive capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholder value.

The Company manages as capital its equity as disclosed in the statement of financial position and its
regulatory capital determined from time to time in accordance with the Insurance Ordinance.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31 December 2024 and 31 December
2023.

The Company is subject to minimum capital requirements under the Insurance Ordinance. To
determine its capital for regulatory purposes, the Company makes certain adjustments to the carrying
values of its assets and liabilities. The regulatory capital requirement is determined by the application
of statutory formulae to the Company’s business information.

Throughout the financial years 2024 and 2023, the Company complied fully with these capital
requirements.
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21,

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The following presents the assets and liabilities measured at fair value or required to disclose their fair
value in these financial statements on a recurring basis across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy
defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement, with the fair value measurement categorised in its entirety
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. The levels of inputs are

defined as follows:

e Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Company can access at the measurement date;

* Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assets
or liabilities, either directly or indirectly;

o  Level 3 (lowest level). unobservable inputs for the assets or liabilities.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Company held the following financial instruments measured

at fair value:

Assets measured at fair value
Investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income:
- Debt investments

Investments at fair value through profit or loss:

- Equity investments
Derivative financial instruments

Liabilities measured at fair value
Derivative financial instruments

Assets measured at fair value
Investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income:
- Debt investments

Investments at fair value through profit or loss:

- Equity investments
Derivative financial instruments

Liabilities measured at fair value
Derivative financial instruments

2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Uss$ Uss$ Uss Us$
123,993,912 - - 123,993,912
- 108,315,328 - 108,315,328
- 145,788 - 145,788
123,993,912 108,461,116 - 232,455,028
- 756,450 - 756,450

2023
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
USs$ Uss$ Us$ Us$
140,116,444 - - 140,116,444
- 103,844,325 - 103,844,325
- 455,596 - 455,596

140,116,444

104,299,921

1,715,659

244,416,365

1,715,659
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22,

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial
assets and financial liabilities (2023: US$Nil).

The management has assessed that the fair values of amounts due from/to group companies,
deposits and other receivables, income tax receivable/payable, cash and bank balances, other
payables and accruals approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities
of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument
could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale.

INFORMATION ABOUT THE BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS

The following disclosures are presented pursuant to section 383 of the Companies Ordinance.

(a) Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383 of the Companies Ordinance is as follows:

Qualifying services

Other services in
connection with
the management

As a director of the affairs Total
US$ US$ USs$

Year ended 31 December 2024
Emoluments 70,472 1,209,249 1,279,721

Qualifying services

Other services in
connection with
the management

As a director of the affairs Total
US$ Uss$ USs$

Year ended 31 December 2023
Emoluments 70,225 1,073,424 1,143,649

(b) Loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour of the directors of the Company or its
holding company, or their controlied companies that were entered into or subsisted during the year
(2023; US$NIl).
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23.

INFORMATION ABOUT THE BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(c) Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangement or contracts
After consideration, the directors are of the opinion that no transactions, arrangements and contracts
of significance in relation to the Company'’s business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year (2023: US$Ni).

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 April
2025.
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